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Acclimatized
Standing strong and versatile amidst a 
challenging test of time, we have endured, 
sustained and changed adaptively to uphold 
our momentum of commendable growth 
and evolution. The life that we spark through 
the realms of renewable energy is inspired 
by over a decade of astounding success 
and industry leading expertise, bringing 
world class quality in sourcing the best in 
commercially viable energy. We continue 
to acclimatize, in our quest to revolutionize 
power paradigms, to be ahead of the pack 
and moreover in our commitment to protect 
the planet and its people…

We are Acclimatized...
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INTRODUCTION TO 
OUR ANNUAL REPORT
102-12, 32, 46, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 56

Demonstrating the Resus Group’s commitment towards 
comprehensive, transparent and balanced reporting, 
we present with pleasure our fourth Integrated Annual 
Report. The Company and its subsidiaries operate in 
compliance with the governing laws and regulations 
and conduct business in a socially and environmentally 
responsible manner. As the primary communication to 
stakeholders, this Report aims to present the integrated 
manner in which the Group manages its business and 
sustainability considerations, thereby balancing the 
competing needs of its stakeholders.

Scope and Boundary

of reporting, accounting policies and boundaries from the previous year. 

has not been restated, unless otherwise stated. In determining the content 
to be included in this Report we have adopted the principle of materiality 

in the short, medium and long term. Our focus on materiality is vital as 
we seek to drive performance, improve our sustainability framework and 
institutionalise the Group’s corporate governance philosophy at all levels.

Assurance

In establishing transparency and credibility of our 
Reporting process and providing superior value to 
all users and stakeholder groups, the information 
presented in this report has been reviewed, as 
applicable, by:

The Board of Directors

Audit Committee of the Company

Independent Auditors Messrs. Ernst & Young, 

the Financial Statements

Kavinda Perera
Head of Finance

Resus Energy PLC

Colombo 7,

kavinda@resusenergy.lk

Feedback

We welcome your 
comments and inquiries on 
this report. Please contact:

Print
Available on
request

CD-Rom
Posted to all 
Shareholders

Online
Available as 
PDFwww.resusenergy.lk

Available Forms
RESUS ENERGY PLC
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Standards and 

Financial Reporting

Non-Financial Reporting

Integrated Reporting Framework of 
the International Integrated Reporting 
Council (IIRC)

Corporate Governance

Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance 
issued jointly by the Institute of Chartered Sustainability Reporting

 
'In accordance' – Core

The Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Standard 

Sustainable Energy Authority

As the primary communication 
to stakeholders, this Report 

aims to present the integrated 
manner in which the Group 

manages its business and 
sustainability considerations, 

thereby balancing the 
competing needs of its 

stakeholders.
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ABOUT US
102-16

Resus Energy PLC is a renewable energy investment and 
development company in Sri Lanka. The Group currently has 
operational power plants in the regions of Kandy, Kegalle, 

With the core operations revolving around Renewable and 
Sustainable energy, Resus is committed towards delivering 
value to its shareholders with integrity and in a socially 
responsible manner. As a Company that cares for the 

management of the economic, social and environmental 
impacts of our operations.
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VISION

ORGANIZATION THAT “CARES FOR 

MISSION

SOURCES. IN DOING SO, WE CREATE AN ORGANIZATION 

CORE VALUES
CREATIVITY
INTEGRITY

OBSESSION FOR PERFORMANCE
SENSE OF URGENCY
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OUR JOURNEY
102-10

2003/04

JUNE 

Incorporation of Hemas Power (Pvt) 

2008/09

OCTOBER 

project, Giddawa Hydro Power (Pvt) 

Digana, Theldeniya

2004/05

SEPTEMBER 

joint venture between Hemas Power 

2015/16

APRIL 

Oya hydropower project. 

SEPTEMBER 

Carried out a Capital Reduction and a 

to its shareholders

capital restructuring

OCTOBER

Huluganga hydropower project

Sale of 7% ownership stake of Panasian 

2016/17

AUGUST 

Commissioned Gomale Oya Hydro Power 

project in Imewatte, Magala

OCTOBER 

MARCH 

2017/18

APRIL 

plant in Maliboda, Deraniyagala

FEBRUARY

Obtained rights to build two solar power 
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2009/10

SEPTEMBER 

the Colombo Stock Exchange as ‘Hemas 

DECEMBER 

Acquired an operational hydropower 
project, Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) 

2011/12

APRIL 

Secured permits for hydropower projects 
in Bundibugyo, Uganda with an aggregate 

incorporated in Uganda

SEPTEMBER 

Commissioned Magalganga mini 
hydropower project under Okanda Power 

project in Maliboda, Deraniyagala

2014/15

OCTOBER 

Sale of joint venture stake in Heladhanavi 

DECEMBER 

Sale of entirety of shares of Butama Hydro 

a consortium comprising NDB Capital 

Changed the name of the Company to 

2018/19

APRIL

plant in Nuwara Eliya

NOVEMBER

Deraniyagala

FEBRUARY

owned subsidiaries Giddawa Hydro Power 

MARCH

Signed SPPA’s for two solar power projects 
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OUR GROUP STRUCTURE
102-5,7,10, 45

liability company listed on the 
Colombo Stock Exchange. The 
Company and its subsidiaries 
are incorporated and 

structure during the year

Amalgamation of Giddawa Hydro Power 
(Pvt) Ltd, Okanda Power Grid (Pvt)Ltd, 
Upper Agra Oya (Pvt) Ltd with Resus 
Energy PLC

owned subsidiaries, Giddawa Hydro 

Acquisition during the year

The Company fully acquired Sierra Power 

purpose entity with rights to develop a 

Nuwara Eliya. The project is progressing 
with construction work underway as at the 
reporting date.

Our expansion into Solar Energy also 
marks a milestone in our journey in the 
renewable energy space. Reiterating our 
belief that there is massive potential in the 
renewable energy sector and in keeping 
with changing market trends we have 

Resus Energy PLC

Gomale Oya Moragaha Oya J B Power (Pvt) Upper 
Huluganga Resus Solar Resus Eastern 

Solar (Pvt) 
Sierra Power 

Po
st

 A
m

al
ga

m
at

io
n

continued operations as Resus Energy 

This restructuring was carried out with the 

management of administrative functions 
and to maximise value creation. The pre 
and post amalgamation group structures 
are demonstrated below:

extended our operations to solar energy. 
Standard Power Purchase Agreements 

Resus Energy PLC

100%

100% 100%

55% 45%

Gomale Oya

Moragaha Oya Resus Eastern Solar 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Giddawa
Hydro Power 

Upper Agra 
Oya Hydro 
Power (Pvt)

J B PowerOkanda Power Sierra PowerResus Solar

Pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

Am
al

ga
m

at
io

n

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%



Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/1911

DELIVERY OF VALUE

Total Capital 
Deployed in 

Renewable Energy 
Sector

2.9Bn

Hydropower
Sector 

Revenue

521Mn

Hydropower
Electricity Generation 

from Fully-owned 
Hydropower Plants

32.31 
GWh

Operating 

343Mn

Reduction in 
Greenhouse Gas 

Emission

22.574 
t-CO2

Taxes paid to 
Government

10.9Mn

Investments 
in Community 
Development

1.52Mn

Group PAT

163Mn

Net Assets 
Value per 

Share

10.42

Total Training 
Hours

408

Water Recycled
279,930,890m3
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HIGHLIGHTS

2019 Change

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Results for the year

Group Revenue  521,062,459 

Results from Operating Activities  342,652,100 

Net Finance Cost  (149,912,879)

 192,739,221 

 162,845,889 

 162,845,889 

 -   

Dividends  (613,067,090)

Financial Position Highlights

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent  786,569,568 

Total Assets  2,979,687,357 

Total Debt  1,937,762,195 

No of Ordinary Shares  75,508,262 

Gearing (%) 71.1%

Shareholder Information

 2.16 

Return on Equity 19.87%

Net Assets per Share  10.42 

Interest Cover  2.29 

Dividend per Share  10.50 

Dividends Payout 136.50%

Dividend Cover  0.26

18.50 (7%)

Market Capitalisation  1,396,902,847 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
102-7
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NON- FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2019

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

Economic value added (Rs.Mn) 488.4

ENVIRONMENTAL CAPITAL

Energy consumption (GJ) 714.1

Total water withdrawal (m ) 279,930,890

) 48.2

) 16.3

) 7.1

Water discharge (m ) 279,930,890

Nil Nil Nil

HUMAN CAPITAL

92

Number of injuries Nil

Nil

Average training hours per employee 4.4

Incidences of discrimination Nil Nil Nil

Incidences of child labour Nil Nil Nil

Incidences of forced labour during the year Nil Nil Nil

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

Community engagement (No. of employees) 60

services
Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil
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STRATEGIC
REFLECTIONS FROM
OUR CHAIRMAN
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholder,

Welcome to the sixteenth Annual General 

to present to you our fourth Integrated 
Annual Report and the Audited Financial 

The last year was an extremely successful 
one, both in terms of the Company’s 

performances.  It had also been a very 
busy year for the group. 

The group went through a corporate 
restructuring exercise, leading to the 
merger of three of our fully owned 
subsidiaries with the parent company, 

exercise and create greater value to our 
stakeholders. This also enabled us to 
pay you, our valued shareholders, an 

through a combination of cash and scrips. 
At the same time, the development work 

completed. Whilst the RanwalaOya project 
was commissioned and is now operational, 
the commissioning of the Upper 

HuluGanga project is delayed due to lack 

completed the peripheral work associated 

Sooryabalasangramaya Phase II tender, 
and have signed the Power Purchase 
Agreements. We are hopeful that this 
would bring in a healthy balance to our 
operations negating the pressure from 

hydropower performances.

Operationally, the power plants did 
reasonably well as our catchment areas 
received better rain fall than the year 
before. With that our total electricity 

On the macro front, although the 
national policy is directionally favorable 
to renewable energy, the economic 

conditions and the general working 
environment in the country continued to 
be at odds with the investment climate. 
The short to medium term impact of the 
recent terrorist attacks and blackouts, 
is yet to be observed, though it is most 
certainly unfavorable to the economy. As 

space, we remain hopeful that a more 
favorable environment for development 
will emerge soon.

With that, I wish to conclude this note by 
thanking our team for their commitment 
and hard work to bring the Company 
to this level and for the conclusion of a 
successful year. I wish to also extend my 
gratitude to my colleagues on the Board 
for steering the Company and guiding it at 

all of you, our valued shareholders for the 

us.

Suren Madanayake
Chairman 
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BUSINESS
REFLECTIONS
FROM OUR MD

"The higher generation, 
increased the group’s 

current year to stand at 
Rs.342.7Mn compared to 
Rs.248.1Mn recorded in the 
previous year. This is a 38.1% 
increase year-on-year".

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW
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Firstly, we began the development of 

The Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) 
in this connection were signed in March 
this year. This is our key to sustain a 

three of our fully owned subsidiaries 

administration of our overheads, 

stakeholders. The merger also enabled 
creation of considerable reserves, which 
the Company was able to make use of, 

previously received without having to pay 
the dividend tax twice over.

At the same time, our project development 
activities leapfrogged amidst numerous 
challenges, emanated from social and 
environmental pressure groups, and 

not be commissioned on time due to lack 

HuluGanga project is commissioned, our 
group operational capacity will increase to 

Our overall operational performances 
too were substantially better than the 
year before. Although a drought kicked in 
towards the middle of December, cutting 

rainfall from April till about end November. 
As a result, although the Okanda and 
GomaleOya plants could not achieve the 
expected operational results, as those 

did well. 

With our strategy to diversify and balance 

crossed on the outcome of the second 
Sooryabalasangramaya Phase II tender we 

build, own and operate basis. We believe 
our pricing for this tender is competitive. 
The shape of our asset portfolio will be far 
more robust if multiple projects from the 
second tender could also be secured. 

Performances

Weather and its impact

periods were active and resulted in good 

GomaleOya and newly commissioned 
RanwalaOya plants. Whereas, the good 

AgraOya and MoragahaOya plants to do 
well. Those could have performed even 

The resulting energy generation for the 

generation of the previous year. The last 
year, also had four months of RanwalaOya 
plant operations. 

Electricity Generation
This year, the Giddawa plant recorded 
the highest generation amongst all our 

level. MoragahaOya plant, commissioned 

level. RanwalaOya plant, commissioned in 

Financial results

Giddawa and AgraOya power plants 

income of those two plants considerably. 
This together with the higher generation, 

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW
102-14,15, 201-2
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year. The increase is mainly due to the full 
year charge out from the loan obtained for 

from the loan obtained for Ranwala Oya 
project and bank overdraft interest.

Economic Challenges
Our economic growth has slowed down 
to unprecedentedly low levels. Country’s 
national security is compromised. We 
received multiple terrorist attacks. We 

surely can spillover to our industry as well. 
Fundamental aspects of the economy are 
extremely disturbing. They are not at all 
favorable or encouraging for business. 

Although the interest rates have stabilized, 
they remain high. The constant tax 
amendments together with high volatility 
in the foreign exchange rates have caused 

now. In the absence of a derivatives 

no option but to borrow at exorbitantly 

The equipment for our projects in the 
pasts were sourced from Europe and more 
recently from China. With Euro having 

prohibitively expensive. Whereas, the 
Chinese equipment priced in USD too 
are becoming increasingly expensive 
although those remain competitive still 
in comparison to European equipment. 
However, the increase in exchange 
rates across, have made most projects 
economically unviable, particularly in the 
hydropower segment, given that the NCRE 

and before. 

resilient and hopeful on an economic 
turnaround. A stimulation in our economy 
is likely to be consumption led and thus 
would directly increase the consumption 
of electricity. It is evident that our 
per capita electricity consumption, in 
comparison to many of the South Asian 
countries, is low, despite the growth in 
the power infrastructure and household 

electricity demand is bound to increase. 

Government Policy and ground 
reality 
Despite the prevalence of numerous policy 
directions for the energy sector, the formal 
policy still remains the ‘National Energy 
Policy and the Strategies’ gazetted back 

the electrical energy supplied to the grid 

Upon meeting this target, the Ministry of 
Power and Energy has released numerous 
other policy documents to augment the 
NCRE growth. Whilst all these initiatives 
can be commended, the commitment on 
the part of the government to implement 

these policies and address the issues 
that hamper implementation, have 
been disappointing. There is increased 

Environmental Authority, the approving 
agency for most of the projects, halted 
granting approvals for new projects and 
in some instances also halted the work of 
some ongoing projects in response to the 

On the other hand, Ceylon Electricity 
Board (CEB) stopped entertaining new 
applications for small hydropower 
projects and other renewable energy 

over an interpretational ambiguity of the 
provisions in the Electricity Act. Whilst 
many projects have been approved and 
built since the introduction of the new 

for three years now. If this warrants an 
amendment to the Act as sighted by the 
CEB, for all these three years neither 
the CEB nor the Ministry has taken any 
action nor any interest to do so. This is 
particularly disappointing in the wake 
of high level of interest and excitement 
shown to procure other types of power 
generation including ‘emergency power’ 

disappointing to see the lukewarm and 
lackadaisical response we receive even 
now from these two public institutions 
responsible for driving this country into 
blackouts. All these actions and inactions 
are suboptimal to the national policy and 
is paradoxical to experience at a time that 
the country is plagued with blackouts 
and has opted to procure astronomically 
expensive emergency power. 

applicable to NCRE sector have not been 
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determination for new hydro projects have 

will be challenging.

obstacles the developers face, largely due 
to the lack of congruence between policy 
setting and implementation agencies, the 
NCRE sector could have grown into much 
greater heights. 

Despite these issues and the challenges, 
the NCRE developers continue to deliver. 
Besides achieving the supply target set 
out in the Energy Policy, the NCRE sector, 

Growth
Our growth primarily has been around 

have considerable experience in. However, 

this segment a couple of years ago, with 

our operations negatively. Now, with 

projects in Ampara area, we will gain vital 
development experience and hopefully 

power segment, in the coming year. As 

enable us to dilute our over dependency 
on hydropower generation in the future. 

We are also hopeful to secure some 
projects on Sooryabalasangramaya Phase 

Although the awards have not yet being 

clusters we bid for, are competitive. 

In the coming year, we would also 

District, the development rights of which 
we acquired through the acquisition of 

On the operational front, the increase 

both AgraOya and Giddawa plants in the 
last year, boosted revenues from those. 

of those two power plants are due to 

of the revenue streams from these two 
power plants will therefore depend on 
the terms of the extensions accorded. 
This impact can be best circumvented 
with the addition of new projects that 

more development work in a challenging 
economic environment!

To endure the dynamism in a multiple 
project development environment, it 
is vital to concentrate on the human 

of information systems, hence we are 
continuously upgrading our human 
talent and our IT resources in pursuit of 
achieving successful expansion without 
compromising on productivity.

Sustainability
Our Vision and Mission are the origins of 
our commitment to create value for our 
stakeholders. Our core values, structures, 
systems and processors encourage 
commitment to such behavior. We make 
our fullest commitment to sustainable 

transparent and visible through our 
corporate reporting process.

Global Reporting Initiative Standards
This is our fourth integrated Annual 
Report and we unceasingly follow the 
best practices in Corporate reporting and 
matters relating to the sustainability. In 
the past three years, our sustainability 
reporting has been guided by the GRI 

greater heights, the Global Sustainability 
Standard Board (GSSB) issued the GRI 
Sustainability Reporting Standards 

accountable corporate citizen, we have 
presented our report in accordance with 
the new GRI Standard.

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW
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Conclusion
Resulting from the corporate restructuring 
exercise, as aforesaid, and keeping in line 
with our priority to maximize the returns 
to our shareholders, we paid an additional 

was possible not withstanding the heavy 
capital commitments made towards the 
growth and development initiatives. 

Needless to say that our achievements 
during the year had largely been due 

exceptionally committed team we are 
fortunate to have. I thank my colleagues 
who have worked hand in glove with me 
in our mission to taking this company to 
greater heights. 

to my fellow colleagues on the Board and 
to all of you, our valued shareholders, for 

 

G A K Nanayakkara
Managing Director



22 Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/19

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR H A S MADANAYAKE

Non–Executive Chairman

MR G A K NANAYAKKARA

Managing Director

 Mr Suren Madanayake had his education 

from the University of Texas at Austin, USA.

Remuneration Committee

 

Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales. He also holds an MSc in Finance from the Birmingham 

Said Business School, University of Oxford.

Mr Nanayakkara has held several senior management positions 
and directorships in companies ranging from manufacturing to 

as an advisor to the National Council for Economic Development 
and as a Consultant to the PERC in the past.

Party Transactions Review Committee.

Managing Director, 

102-22
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MR U G MADANAYAKE

Non–Executive Director

MR I S SOMARATNE

Non-Executive Director

Mr Upali Madanayake had his early 
education at Ananda College, Colombo. He graduated from the 

owned plantations until most of the lands were taken over by 

to have an active interest in agriculture. He joined the Board 

the Deputy Chairman of the Company. He became a Director 

the cable industry. 

None

 Mr Isuru Somaratne holds a BSc in 
Mechanical Engineering from the University of Moratuwa, and an 

An Associate Member of the Chartered Institute of Management 

in the Corporate Advisory division at NDB Investment Bank 
and now functions as the Vice President – Investments at NDB 

successful transactions carried out at NDB Group’s investment 
banking cluster during his career including IPOs, M&A, Financial 
Restructurings, etc. Mr. Somaratne was also part of the team which 

the United States.

Member of Board 
Audit Committee and Board Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee.
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PROFESSOR K A M K RANASINGHE

Independent Non-Executive Director

MR U P EGALAHEWA PC 

Independent Non-Executive Director

 Prof. Malik Ranasinghe is a Senior 

Chartered Engineer and a Fellow of the Institution of Engineers, 

PhD from University of British Columbia, Vancouver, Canada in 

extensively on Engineering and Environmental Economics with 

Research Committee Award for Outstanding Contribution to Sri 

Researcher in Technology and related Sciences, the Award for 

Chairman of Board 
Audit Committee, Member of Board Remuneration Committee, 
and Member of Board Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee.

 Mr Uditha Egalahewa had his basic legal 

a World Bank sponsored scholar, from the International Maritime 

was awarded the Professor Walter Muller Prize. He also holds a 

Colombo. 

as counsel attached to the Government Institutions Branch, a State 

 Chairman of Board 
Remuneration Committee, Chairman of Board Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee and Member of Board Audit 
Committee.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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MR C D COOMASARU

Independent Non-Executive Director

Director to Mr U G Madanayake

Mr Champika Coomasaru is an Associate 

a B.com Special Degree from the University of Colombo. He 

and currently holds the position of Group Finance Controller at 

Alternate Director 
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Kishan Nanayakkara

M.Sc. Fin, FCMA, ACA (ICAEW), AMP

(Oxford)

Managing Director

Chaya Ranaweera

Psych.

Head of Human Resources

Prasad Mudugama

B.Sc. Eng. (Mechanical), B.Sc. Defense 

Head of Projects

Kavinda Perera

B.Sc. Fin. Mgt, ACMA, CGMA

Head of Finance

Chinthaka Perera

B.Sc. Eng (Civil), PG Dip (Water Resource 

Senior Civil Engineer

Vimukthi Deshapriya

B.Sc. Eng. (Electrical), Dip (Business Mgt.), 

Operations and Maintenance Manager



Power with

Energy
STRATEGIC

REPORT
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OUR BUSINESS OPERATION

Greater and renewed attention is being 
paid towards the development and 
utilization of renewable sources of energy, 
in response to growing concerns about 

and social development while encouraging 
sustainability and environmental 
wellbeing. The growing aspirations of an 
expanding world population are expected 
to increase world energy demand, in 

Renewable energy sources exist over 
extensive geographical zones, in contrast 
to other energy sources, which are 
geographically limited and renewable 
energy markets are projected to continue 
to grow steadily in the coming decade 
and beyond. Countries such as Norway 
and Iceland predominantly generate 
electricity using renewable energy while 
China currently has the world’s largest 
installed capacity of hydro, solar and wind 

renewable sources in the energy mix.

However, as renewable energy policies and 
markets develop, they increasingly face 
new challenges, which are multifaceted 

reserves of fossil fuels are still available 

costs and the lack of sound policies are 
some of the main barriers that deter 
investment in renewables. 

Despite these challenges the future of 
renewable energy is positive with its 
growing demand coupled with economic 

being and a safe climate. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK

 Global energy demand rises at 
a slower pace when compared 
to the past, but is expected to 

state.

 Compared to the past, how the 
world meets its energy needs 
changes with the lead now taken 
by natural gas, rapid rise in 
renewable energy and by energy 

 Bright future for renewables as 
they become for many countries, 
the least cost source of energy 
generation.

 Rapid deployment of Solar 
Photovoltaics (PV), led by China 
and India helps solar become 

Source:
https://www.iea.org/weo2018/

In accordance with the Central Bank 
statistics electricity generation continued 

growth in hydropower generation. Total 

The share of hydropower generation, 
excluding mini hydropower, recorded an 

the higher level of rainfall in catchment 
areas during the year. With increased 

Meanwhile, power generation through 

comparison to the corresponding period 
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TOTAL ENERGY GENERATION GWh
2018 - 15,255GWh

33.8%

23.8%

31.2%

11.2%

l Hydro Power Generation - Excluding Mini Hydro
l Fuel oil-based power generation
l Coal Power Generation
l NCRE

TOTAL ENERGY GENERATION GWh
2017 - 14,671GWh

20.9%

34.4%

34.8%

10.0%

l Hydro Power Generation - Excluding Mini Hydro
l Fuel oil-based power generation
l Coal Power Generation
l NCRE

INSTALLED CAPACITY
2018 - 4,085MW

 1,391

1,220

 900

574

l Hydro Power Generation - Excluding Mini Hydro
l Fuel oil-based power generation
l Coal Power Generation
l NCRE

INSTALLED CAPACITY
2017 - 4,138MW

 1,384

1,293

 900

561

l Hydro Power Generation - Excluding Mini Hydro
l Fuel oil-based power generation
l Coal Power Generation
l NCRE

During the year initiatives – 2018

 Public Utilities Commission of Sri 

per the Cabinet approval, the national 
policy on the energy mix to be met 

or indigenously available natural gas, 

sources.

 With the aim of catering to the 
growing energy demand while 
reducing the cost of electricity 
generation in the country, 

scale hydropower projects was in 
progress during the year.

programme which was launched in 

Power and Renewable Energy, The Sri 

and enhance consumer safety. 
Subsequent to a public consultation, 

agencies established a framework 
for licensing electricians with the 
aim of safeguarding the public as 
well as increasing the demand for 

recognition.

Source : Central Bank Annual Report 
2018; Figure are presented on Calendar 
year basis
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Our Operations
102-2, 4, 6, 7

We passionately and resolutely continue 

With six operational mini hydro power 
plants and two others under development 
we have set our footprint across four 
regions of the country. All our projects 
are equipped with top of the range 
electromechanical equipment and a 
competent and skilled workforce, fueling 
our energy generation process allowing us 
to function at our optimum capability. With 
our core growth strategy revolving around 
hydro power we are consistently exploring 
other renewable energy sources such as 
solar power, wind power and biomass. 
As we scale up on our operations we are 
conscious of the fact that sustainability 
and concern for the people and planet 
permeates our operations and our carbon 
footprint remains at a minimal level. 

During the year under review we 

national grid.

OUR BUSINESS OPERATION

Overview of 
hydro electricity 
generation from a 
run-of-the-river mini 
hydropower plant

A

B

C

D

E

F

E POWER HOUSE CONTAINING 
TURBINE AND GENERATOR

HEAD OFFICE

Giddawa

Moragaha Oya

Upper Huluganga

Upper Agra Oya

Karapalagama 

Okanda

Gomale Oya

Ranwala Oya
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Giddawa Mini Hydro Power Project 

Capacity 2.0MW

Date of SPPA 08/05/2006

Tenure of SPPA 15 Years

Commissioned Date October 2008

Status of the Project Operational

Invested Capital  Rs. 389Mn

EM Equipment supplier WKV-Germany

Turbine Equipment type Fransis

Generator Equipment Hitzinger-Austria

 Giddawa, Digana

District  Kandy

River  Huluganga

Head (meters)  26.3

 1A-3R-30.90P

Number of Buildings  Two

Square Feet of Buildings 4,103 sq ft.
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No. of employees
Reduction in Carbon 

)
Number of electricity units dispatched 

during the year (GWh)

12 5.88 (2018 – 4.57) 8.42 (2018 – 6.55)

Plant factor for the year 
Major plant shut downs 

during the year 
Impairment adjustments if any

48% (2018 - 37%) None None
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Okanda Mini Hydro Power Project

OUR BUSINESS OPERATION

Capacity  2.4MW

Date of SPPA 09/02/2010

Tenure of SPPA  20 Years

Commissioned Date September 2011

Status of the Project  Operational

Invested Capital  Rs. 453Mn

EM Equipment supplier GHE-Austria

Turbine Equipment type Fransis

Generator Equipment  Hitzinger-Austria

 Dikkellakanda, Maliboda

District  Kegalle

River  Magalganga

Head (meters)  110.0

 0A-3R-31.83P

Number of Buildings  Two

Square Feet of Buildings  3,504 sq ft.
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No. of employees )
Number of electricity units dispatched 

during the year (GWh)

 
13 4.96 (2018-5.06) 7.10 (2018 – 7.24)

Plant factor for the year 
Major plant shut downs 

during the year 
Impairment adjustments if any

34% (2018 - 34%) None None
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Upper Agra Oya Mini Hydro Power Project 

Capacity  2.6MW

Date of SPPA 29/04/2005

Tenure of SPPA  15 Years

Commissioned Date February 2006

Status of the Project  Operational

Invested Capital  Rs. 345Mn

EM Equipment supplier Gilkes- United Kingdom

Turbine Equipment type Fransis

Generator Equipment  Alconza- Spain

 Lindula, Thalawakelle

District  Nuwara Eliya

River  Agra Oya

Head (meters) 40.0

 Nil (Leasehold land                    
from Hatton Plantations PLC)

Number of Buildings Two

Square Feet of Buildings  5078 sq ft.
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No. of employees
Reduction in Carbon 

)
Number of electricity units dispatched 

during the year (GWh)

15 5.85 (2018 – 4.59) 8.38 (2018 – 6.57)

Plant factor for the year 
Major plant shut downs 

during the year 
Impairment adjustments if any

37% (2018 - 29%) None None
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Gomale Oya Mini Hydro Power Project 

Capacity  1.8MW

Date of SPPA  28/04/2015

Tenure of SPPA  20 Years

Commissioned Date  August 2016

Status of the Project  Operational

Invested Capital  Rs. 276Mn

EM Equipment supplier  Zeco- Italy

Turbine Equipment type  Pelton

Generator Equipment  Marelli Motori- Italy

 Magala, Maliboda

District  Kegalle

River  Gomale Oya

Head (meters)  160.0

 1A-0R-26.91P

Number of Buildings  Two

Square Feet of Buildings  2518 sq ft.
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No. of employees
Reduction in Carbon 

)
Number of electricity units dispatched 

during the year (GWh)

6 1.88 (2018 – 2.10) 2.69 (2018 – 3.02)

Plant factor for the year 
Major plant shut downs 

during the year 
Impairment adjustments if any

22% (2018 - 25%) None None

OUR BUSINESS OPERATION
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Moragaha Oya Mini Hydro Power Project 

Capacity  1.5MW

Date of SPPA 28/04/2015

Tenure of SPPA  20 Years

Commissioned Date  March 2017

Status of the Project  Operational

Invested Capital  Rs. 378Mn

EM Equipment supplier  Gugler- Austria

Turbine Equipment type  Fransis

Generator Equipment  Marelli Motori- Italy

 Panvila, Theldeniya

District  Kandy

River  Moragaha Oya

Head (meters)  78.7

 Nil

Number of Buildings  One

Square Feet of Buildings 1,520 sq ft.
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No. of employees
Reduction in Carbon 

)
Number of electricity units dispatched 

during the year (GWh)

9 3.71 (2018 – 2.89) 5.31 (2018 – 4.14)

Plant factor for the year 
Major plant shut downs 

during the year 
Impairment adjustments if any

40% (2018 - 32%) None None
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Ranwala Oya Mini Hydro Power Project*

Capacity  0.7MW

Date of SPPA 06/08/2010

Tenure of SPPA  20 Years

Commissioned Date  November 2018

Status of the Project  Operational

Invested Capital  Rs. 288Mn

EM Equipment supplier Lanzu International-China

Turbine Equipment type  Fransis

Generator Equipment Lanzu International-China

 Maliboda, Deraniyagala

District  Kegalle

River  Ranwala Oya

Head (meters)  50.0

 Nil

Number of Buildings  One

Square Feet of Buildings  2,600 sq ft.
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No. of employees
Reduction in Carbon 

)
Number of electricity units dispatched 

during the year (GWh)

3 0.29 0.41

Plant factor for the year 
Major plant shut downs 

during the year 
Impairment adjustments if any

20% None None

OUR BUSINESS OPERATION

*J B Power (Pvt) Limited
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Upper Huluganga Mini Hydro Power Project Karapalagama Mini Hydro Power Project**

Capacity  1.9MW

Date of SPPA  01/10/2015

Tenure of SPPA  20 Years

Status of the Project  Under Construction 

Capacity  2.0MW

Date of SPPA 05/03/2012

Tenure of SPPA  20 Years

Status of the Project  Under Construction 

Invested Capital  Rs. 365Mn*

EM Equipment supplier  Zeco-Italy

Turbine Equipment type  Fransis

Generator Equipment  Marelli Motori-Italy

Invested Capital  Rs. 621Mn*

EM Equipment supplier

Turbine Equipment type  Fransis

Generator Equipment

 Panvila, Theldeniya

District  Kandy

River  Huluganga

Head (meters)  63.8

 Walapane, Nildandahinna

District  Nuwara Eliya

River  Madulla Oya

Head (meters)  69.0

LO
CA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 S
IT

E 
D

ET
AI

LS

LO
CA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 S
IT

E 
D

ET
AI

LS

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T 

AN
D

 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T 

AN
D

 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T

PR
O

JE
CT

 S
N

AP
SH

O
T

PR
O

JE
CT

 S
N

AP
SH

O
T

*Planned Investment **Sierra Power (Pvt) Limited
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CREATING SHARED VALUE

HUMAN CAPITAL
Employees

ENVIRONMENTAL CAPITAL
Head and Flow
Water
Energy
Material

MANUFACTURED CAPITAL

Property, Plant and Equipment

Technology

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL
Knowledge and Experience
Processes,Systems and Procedures
Creativity and Innovation

FINANCIAL CAPITAL
Debt
Equity

INPUT CAPITALS
BUILD OWN AND OPERATE 
RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS

Financial Feasibility and 
Due Diligence

Project Evaluations and 
Acquisitions

Project Management

Supplier Relationship 
Management

Project Commissioning 
and Operations

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

VISION, MISSION 
AND VALUES BUSINESS STRATEGY

PG
46

PG
55

PG
58

PG
62

PG
07 PG

45

PG
75

PG
67

PG
69

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL
Customers
Suppliers 
Contractors
Government Institutions
Local Communities

Allocating our capital resources

experiences and aspirations, adapting to the dynamic and challenging environment we operate in. Our value creation activities use 
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VALUE CREATED FOR OUR KEY STAKEHOLDERS OTHER IMPACTS

SHAREHOLDERS
Rs.162.8Mn

Rs.10.50
Rs. 786.6Mn

LENDERS
Rs.1,657Mn

Rs. 254.5Mn
Rs. 140.2Mn

CUSTOMERS
32.31GWh

SUPPLIERS
Supplier payments to civil 

Rs. 766Mn to date 
Contracts signed with overseas suppliers

EMPLOYEES
408

Rs. 87Mn
Career development
Rewards and recognition

REGULATORS
Rs. 10.9Mn

SOCIETY AND ENVIRONMENT
60

Rs. 1.5Mn

ECONOMIC
 Financial Capital
 Manufactured Capital

SOCIAL
 Social and 

Relationship Capital
 Human Capital
 Intellectual Capital

ENVIRONMENTAL
 Environmental Capital

CAPITALS MANAGEMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

PG
46

PG
113

managing the economic, social and environmental impacts of our processes. Built around responsible corporate citizenship and 

delivery of rising value.
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CONNECTING WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS
102-40,42,43,44

Strong stakeholder engagement is a key 
force behind gearing sustainability and 
deciding how we manage our capitals 
to create value. Needs and expectations 
of stakeholders which emerge from the 
engagement process contribute largely 
towards identifying our strategic direction. 
Through our ethical code of business 
conduct, environmental management 
system, structured human resources 

relationship management, we ensure 

expectations and make a positive impact 
though our business conduct. 

Management approach for 

engagement

Our project team comprehensively 

stages of the projects and this is an 

management manual. Maintaining an 
open and constructive dialogue with 

our stakeholders helps us apprehend 
expectations and contributes to risk 
management, learning and innovation. It 
also helps us to identify emerging issues 
and opportunities leading to improved 
performance. We interact with a diverse 
range of stakeholders, but we choose to 
have a robust and consistent engagement 

as having a critical impact on our business.

using the data collected from various 
stakeholder groups from initial 
engagements and based on their 

stakeholders are ranked based on the 

operations of Resus

 Parties who have responsibilities 
towards Resus

operations

Based on the above aspects, the main 

 Shareholders
Public Shareholders

 Lenders
Institutions

 Customers

 Employees

 Suppliers
Equipment Suppliers and Civil 
Contractors

 Society

 Regulators
and Agencies

 Environment

We maintain formal communication 
mechanisms with all groups of 
stakeholders on a periodic basis with 
a view to identifying stakeholder 
expectations and assess the outcomes of 
its engagement.

IDENTIFICATION

 Identify 
stakeholder 
groups

PLANNING

 Establish 
scope, 
objectives and 
timelines

 Allocate 
resources

ENGAGEMENT

 Determine 
mode of 
engagement

 Conduct 
engagement

PRIORITIZATION

 Review and 

 Address 
concerns

EVALUATION

 Assess 
concerns and 
expectations

 Formulate 
necessary 
policies and 
action plans
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PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS
BANKS AND FINANCIAL 

INSTITUTIONS CEYLON ELECTRICITY BOARD EMPLOYEES

Frequency of Engagement

Annually, Quarterly and 
Regularly

Frequency of Engagement

As required

Frequency of Engagement

Regularly

Frequency of Engagement

Regularly

Engagement Methods

• Board meetings among 
representative members of 
main equity partners

• Annual general meeting

• Announcements and 

CSE website

Engagement Methods

• Announcements and 

CSE website

• Performance updates via 
submission of monthly, 
quarterly and annual 

• Meetings and discussions

Engagement Methods

• Build close rapport with 

• Regular engagement in 
relationship management 
activities

• Compliance with provisions 
in Standardised Power 
Purchase Agreements (SPPA)

Engagement Methods

• Management meetings and 
internal communications

• Strategic planning sessions

performance review 
meetings 

• HR clinics at plant sites

• Mentoring and counselling

Discussion Topics

• Business plan and strategic 
direction

• Business performance 
drivers and sustainability

• Governance and Ethics

• Return on Investment and 
Risk Management

Discussion Topics

• Debt service coverage

• Banking transactions 

• Business performances 

Discussion Topics

• New project approvals

• Grid connection proposals

• Projects commissioning and 
transmission

• Settlement for electricity 
units dispatched at 

Discussion Topics

• Remuneration and annual 
goal setting

• Employee relationship 
management

• Training and development

• Occupational health and 
safety

Our Response

• Creating Economic 
Value Added (EVA) to 
our shareholders by 
undertaking projects 
with high Internal Rate of 
Return and appropriate risk 
management measures

Our Response

• Strict monitoring of 
compliance with provisions 
in loan agreements

• Audit committee review of 

• Timely settlement of dues

Our Response

• Submiting invoices 
in accordance with 

in Standardised Power 
Purchase Agreement (SPPA)

Our Response

• On the job training 

• Imparting company values 

• Platforms for employee 
feedback

• Performance driven reward

 systems

• Health & safety initiatives 

• Open door policy

Rs.
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ELECTRO MECHANICAL 

CIVIL CONTRACTORS SOCIETY
GOVERNMENT INSTITUTIONS 

AND AGENCIES NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

Frequency of Engagement

As required

Frequency of Engagement

Regularly

Frequency of Engagement

Regularly

Frequency of Engagement

Regularly

Engagement Methods

electromechanical 
equipment suppliers 

• Regular invitations for bids 
for supply and construction 
contracts of projects 

• Adherence to terms and 
conditions in supply 
agreements

Engagement Methods

• Close contact with religious 
leaders in immediate local 
communities of project sites

• Scoping  committee 
meetings before starting 
projects

• Focus group meetings

• Community development 

• Employment to villagers

Engagement Methods

• Close engagement 

government institutions 

• Venturing with government 
agencies for good causes

• Submission of special 
reports as per requirements

Engagement Methods

• Develop projects under strict 
environmental regulations

Management System to 
ensure compliance 

• Carry out projects with 
minimum destruction to the 
environment

• Engage in environmental 
development programmes

Discussion Topics

• Procurement policies 

• Engineering standards 

• Contractual obligations

labour practices, 
environmental and social 
impacts

• Adherence to civil 
construction contracts and 
timely settlements

Discussion Topics

• Needs and requirements of 
society

• CSR activities

• Ethical business conduct

Discussion Topics

• Project approvals

• Adherence to guidelines of 
project approvals

• Governance and Ethics 

Discussion Topics

• Environmental management 

• Water

• Generation of clean and 
green energy

• Compliance and 
conservation

• Emissions and waste

Our Response

sharing of information

• Obtaining references and 
guarantees provided for the 
goods supplied 

• Construction agreements 
signed according to ICTAD 
guidelines

Our Response

• Build, own and operate 
projects within our ethical 
code of conduct and deliver 
promises as a responsible 
corporate citizen

• Strive to reach the 
best solution with local 
communities to improve 
their life styles through 
generous sponsorships

Our Response

• Regular review of compliance 
with government approvals 

compliances to the Audit 
Committee

• Timely payment of all 
statutory dues 

Our Response

• Regularly monitoring 
compliance 

• Periodical noise level and 
water quality testing

• Preventive and corrective 
measures to minimize 
negative externalities

CONNECTING WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS
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DETERMINING 
MATERIALITY
102-46,47,49

Material issues are those which have 
a strong bearing on our stakeholders 
assessments and decisions about our 
sustainability and commitment to their 
needs. These material aspects contribute 

planning, and operations and achieving 
our strategic objectives. The materiality 
assessment process is conducted with the 
aim of addressing issues based on their 
potential impact on our ability to create 
value across the value chain. The needs of 

bearing in mind the materiality of issues 
our response to them must also evolve 
over time. 

This Report is one of the primary methods 
used to communicate the Group's 
response to stakeholder concerns 

recognizing key sustainability related risks, 

of the material topics based on their 
relative importance to both the Group 
and stakeholders, and the management 
approaches to address the topics, function 

year were mapped to the topics of the 
GRI standards. Upon mapping and 

linked to GRI standards were also 
separately included as material topics. 
Topics with low materiality have not been 
reported on. The management approach 
of the GRI topics considered as material to 
both the Stakeholder and the Group have 

changes in the list of material topics and 

The process for identifying and 

IDENTIFICATION OF ISSUES

EVALUATION OF 
SIGNIFICANCE 

PRIORITIZATION OF 
MATERIAL ISSUES

REPORTING BASED ON 
MATERIALITY

M
AT

ER
IA

LI
TY

 T
O

 S
TA

KE
H

O
LD

ER
- E

XT
ER

N
AL

MATERIALITY TO GROUP- INTERNAL

 

H
ig

h
M

od
er

at
e

Lo
w

HighModerateLow



44 Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/19

Disclosure

Materiality

To the Group To the Stakeholder

ECONOMIC

Economic Performance High High

Indirect Economic Impact Moderate High

Procurement Practices High High

High Moderate

ENVIRONMENTAL

Materials Moderate Moderate

Energy High High

Water High High

Biodiversity Moderate High

Emissions High High

Moderate High

Environmental Compliance High High

Supplier Environmental Assessment High Low

SOCIAL

Employment High High

Occupational Health and Safety High High

Training and Education High High

Diversity and Equal Opportunity Moderate Moderate

High High

Freedom of Association and Collective Bargaining High High

High High

High High

High High

Supplier Social Assessment Moderate Moderate

Customer Health and Safety High High

Customer Privacy Moderate High

High High

Risk Management A High High

B High Moderate

C High High

Reliability of electro mechanical equipment supplied and timely settlements D High High

Adherence to civil construction contracts and timely settlement for work done 
E Moderate Moderate

Concerns and needs of local community F Moderate Moderate

DETERMINING 
MATERIALITY
Material Topics For 2019
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RESUS STRATEGY

Our strategic plan has been built on the principles of our Vision, Value Creation Model and our Stakeholder interests. We are unceasingly 

energy segment.

CAPITAL 
MANAGEMENT

 Downsizing 
the cost of 
capital 

 Optimization 
of return 
from 
investment

PEOPLE 
MANAGEMENT

 Hire right 
people

 Talent 
development

RELATIONSHIP 
MANAGEMENT

 Strong 

relationship 
based on 
mutual trust

 Empowering 
communities

EFFICIENT 
OPERATIONS

 Preventive 
maintenance

 Continuous 

improvements

RISK 
MANAGEMENT

 Preemptive 
actions 
against 
adverse 

economic 
variables 

 Creative 
initiatives 
to handle 
crowing out 
threat

 Segmental 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

check and 
balance

 Embed to 
corporate 
culture

SUSTAINABLE PROFITS AND GROWTH

G
O

AL
AC

TI
O

N
S

VI
SI

O
N

TO BUILD

 Commercially Sustainable

 Energetic

 World Class Organization

CARES FOR

 People and

 Planet

BY MEETING

 Energy Needs

FINANCIAL
CAPITAL

HUMAN
CAPITAL

SOCIAL AND
RELATIONSHIP

CAPITAL

MANUFACTURED
CAPITAL

RISK
MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE



46 Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/19
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GRI 201,203,204,205

management of Financial 
Capital is a crucial aspect 
in any organization. In 

the strategic aspects of our 
Financial Capital and the best 
uses of them, to increase the 
shareholders’ wealth and 
achieve growth objectives 

whole.

Dividends and Interest

Shareholders
Funds and

Debt Capital

Invest in
Renewable 

energy
Projects

Cash
from CEB

Internal and
External Stakeholders

Government

Segmental

Operation 
Expenses

Taxes

Economic Value
Creation
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Financial Year at a glance

• The Group experienced an overall 

compared to the previous year due to 
rich rainfall received at the beginning 

• Three of our subsidiaries were merged 
with parent company and continue to 

• The Company paid cash and scrip 

share.

• Commenced the development work 

added to our hydropower portfolio via 

• Acquired the development rights of 

presented below provides an insight into 
the Finance Capital and its impact to the 
Group and the Company.

Key performance measures 

Area Measure

Revenue Turnover (Rs. Mn)

Working capital management Current Ratio (Times)

Assets Utilization Fixed Assets Turnover (Times)

Capital Structure Gearing (%)

Investor Measures EPS (Rs.)

Dividend Payout Ratio (%)

Growth Capex as a % of TA

Revenue

(kWh). Our Giddawa and Upper Agra plants recorded highest generation among all the 

GROUP REVENUE 2018/19 (Rs.) GROUP REVENUE 2017/18 (Rs.)

135.25 

103.54
136.21

47.26

92.789

 6.02

88.27 

105.62
89.90

52.75

72.117

l  Giddawa Hydro Power Project 
l  Okanda Hydro Power Project 
l  Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power Project 

l  Gomale Oya Hydro Power Project 
l  Moragaha Oya Hydro Power Project 
l  Ranwala Oya Hydro Power Project
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ELECTRICITY GENERATED 2018/19 (GWh) ELECTRICITY GENERATED 2017/18 (GWh)

8.42 

7.10 
8.38 

2.69

5.31

  0.41 

 6.55

 7.24 
6.57

3.02

44.144

l  Giddawa Hydro Power Project 
l  Okanda Hydro Power Project 
l  Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power Project 

l  Gomale Oya Hydro Power Project 
l  Moragaha Oya Hydro Power Project 
l  Ranwala Oya Hydro Power Project

Net Finance Cost

over that of the previous year of Rs. 

full year charge out from the loan obtained 

out from the loan obtained for Ranwala 
Oya project and bank overdraft interest. 

The Group's total loan borrowing as at 

loans which had been raised at Giddawa 

a result of amalgamation. Those loans 

Interest Method in accordance with Sri 

Further, the unutilized component of  term 
loans of Upper Huluganga and Ranwala 
Oya projects at the beginning of the 
year were drawn down during the year. 
The total capital outstanding at the year 

respectively. Term loan facility for 

 

attributable component of interest during 
construction has been capitalized as part 
of the project cost. 

A detail breakdown of the Group,s 
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GROUP NET FINANCE COST AND
INTEREST COVER

4.6 

0.8 

2.1  2.3 

n Net Finance Cost (Rs.Mn)
Interest Cover (Times)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

The Group tax expense consists of income 
tax and deferred tax expenses. The income 

year. This increase mainly arose due to 

per the BOI agreement and all other plants 

year under review.

None of the Group companies were liable 
to pay Value Added Tax (VAT) and Nations 
Building Tax (NBT) under the prevailing 
provisions. A detailed description of tax 
rates and concessions of each power plant 

FINANCIAL CAPITAL
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The year under review has been positive 

is primarily resulting from the upward 
movement in the electricity generated 
from the hydropower plants which 

Upper Agra power plants.

before interest and tax (EBIT) amounting to 

the previous year. 

EARNINGS (Rs. Mn)

80 

343163

163

116

116

193

130

248

 (85) 

(89)

-100 -50 0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

PAT

PBT

EBIT

n 18/19       n 17/18     n 16/17

Growth Perspective
Resus’ approach to economic value 
creation believes in creating shared 

During the year under review, the Group 

health with the core growth strategy, by  

and commencing the development work 

which were secured from the Soorya Bala 
Sangramaya Phase II tender. 

Investments and Capital 
Expenditure

Out of the Group’s investment of 

year end includes the amounts invested 
in development of Upper Huluganga, 

Solar projects.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE (Rs. Mn)

116

1162018/19

2017/18

2016/17

0 100 200 300 400 500

 397 

 279

 406 

Net Assets per Share
The Group’s Net Assets per Share as at 

per Share. This is mainly as a result of the 
increasing number of shares from the scrip 
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EQUITY AND NET ASSETS PER SHARE (Rs. Mn)

n Equity (Rs. Mn)
Net Asset per share (Rs.)

16.28

14.87
14.60

10.41

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Cash and cash equivalents net of the bank 

as at the reporting date compared to a 

repaid capital and interest amounting to 

a dividend distribution to its shareholders 

cash outlays were funded by operational 

year. 

Share holders’ funds

Resus is committed towards maintaining 
a healthy capital structure, which is 
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achieving business growth that creates 

our shareholders. During the year, 
shareholders’ funds attributable to the 
equity holders of the Company decreased 

previous year. This is due to the interim 
dividend distributed to the shareholders of 

GEARING (%)

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

53.1

57.5

63.4

71.1

Gearing 

Total assets of the Group are funded by 

year end, the Group’s gearing ratio stood 

previous year.

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

Group

st March

Rs. Mn Rs. Mn

interest bearing debt)

Bank overdraft

Total Debt 1,937.8 1,479.8 

Surplus cash

Net debt/(cash) 1,817.4 1,322.8 

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent

Total equity 786.6 852.4 

Capital employed (total debt + total equity)

Capital employed less surplus cash

Total gearing (total debt / capital employed) 71.1% 63.4%

Net gearing (net debt/capital employed less surplus cash) 69.8% 60.8%

wholly owned subsidiaries, Giddawa Hydro 

administration of our overheads, taxes 

to our stakeholders. The merger also 
enabled creation of considerable reserves, 
which the Company was able to make use 

had received previously without having to 
pay the dividend taxes twice over.

The new group structure is elaborated 

Earnings per Share (EPS)

the year. Comparatively, the EPS stood at 
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rs.)

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

-1.5 -1.0 -0.5 0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5

2.24

1.54

(1.35)

2.16

Distributions

The Board of Directors authorized an 

transactions are further illustrated in Note 

Interest Cover

The interest cover derived based on 
Earnings before Interest and Tax (EBIT) 
from the continuing operations indicates 

for the previous year. The increment in 
the ratio is due to the better operational 
performance in the current year. 

Economic Value Added (EVA)
201-1

EVA is a tool for gauging the real economic 
performance of a business and its ability 
to create shareholder value. EVA provides 
a means for coupling the two fundamental 
drivers of economic or shareholder value, 

Rs. Mn Rs. Mn Rs. Mn

Capital Charge
EVA
NOPAT return on Capital Invested

NOPAT and Capital Invested were adjusted for operating lease charges. Average of 
invested capital was used for EVA, which is the average of the current and prior year total 

depreciation was assumed as economic depreciation. Cost of equity for hurdle rate was 

the equity risk premium.

201-3,4

The Group made the following statutory payments in relation to its employees on or before 
their respective due dates.    
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GROUP (Rs. Mn)
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FINANCIAL CAPITAL

management
203-1,2

We contribute to the country’s economy, 
the national interest and impact on our 
stakeholders directly and indirectly. 

Clean and green 

generation through 
renewable energy 
sources supports the 
government’s plan to 

electricity generation 
with renewable energy 
in the future.

Employment and 

create employment 
opportunities in rural 
villages and develop 
rural infrastructure 
around our projects.

Adherence and set 

to regulations and 
guidelines set by project 
approving agencies and 
also monitor ourselves 
to progress in an 

manner as set out in 
our own Environmental 
Management Plan.

Resus’ 
impact 
on the 
Economy

Investment in Hydropower

The cumulative investments we have made 

the year, the investment by the Group 
in the development and construction of 
hydropower and Solar plants amounted to 

the villages around our hydropower plants. 

Statement of Financial Value Added

 Group 

 Rs. Mn  %  Rs. Mn  % 

Revenue

Associates

bought in
Total Value Added 488.4 100% 377.1 100%

Distribution of Value Added:
Employees
Government 

Community
Shareholders*
Depreciation set aside
Economic Value Retained
Total Value Added 488.4 100% 377.1 100%

Number of employees
Value Added per employee

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

2019         2018
Kandy District NuwaraEliya District Kegalle District Colombo District Total in the country

2019         2018 2019         2018 2019         2018 2019         2018

INVESTED CAPITAL IN HYDROPOWER PROJECTS (Rs.Mn)

1,135.55 
971.78

206.62 213.32

938.45 
763.24

21.31 28.27 

2,302

1,977
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Value Created and Distributed by Regions   

NuwaraEliya

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
Revenue
Other Income

bought in
Total Value Added 197.55 132.01 128.84 135.46 93.72 63.13

Distribution of Value Added:
Employees
Government 

Community
Depreciation set aside
Economic Value Retained
Total Value Added 197.55 132.01 128.84 135.46 93.72 63.13

Number of employees
Value Added per employee

Key economic parameters and their impact on Resus

Impact on Resus

· Rising project development cost as major parts of electromechanical 
equipment are imported.

Impact management

· Factoring the exchange rate risk at the project viability evaluation. 

· Hedging strategies are used as practicable to avoid exchange rate 
risk.

Interest rate

Impact on Resus

· Higher borrowing cost of future projects would make certain projects 

· Newly developed projects and the projects under developments will 
have an increasing interest cost pressure.

· Rising cost of borrowings might slow down the country’s overall GDP 
growth, consumption and private investments which would slow 
down the energy demand.

Impact management

· Our borrowings which were raised against capital restructuring in 

· Active search for subsidized project funding at attractive interest 
schemes.

levels.
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respectively 

Impact on Resus

project development cost 

Impact management

Impact on Resus

· Variation in oil prices therefore would have a positive correlation 

Our two main mini hydro power plants Giddawa and Upper Agra are 

Impact management

the commercial risks the Company is exposed to. 

throughout the tenure of the SPPA.

GDP Growth rate 

Impact on Resus

· GDP growth rate indicates investments and consumption which 
would trigger a growth in demand for electricity from both industrial 
and domestic sectors. 

Impact management

· Plan to expand our renewable energy portfolio making best use of 
the opportunities available.

· Continuous exploration to enhance the capacity of our portfolio 

Impact on Resus

· The demand for electricity is expected to meet through renewable 
and other indigenous energy resources.

Impact management

· Resus has great potential and competitive advantage in renewable 
energy space managing its capital inputs more productively to 
create economic value.

FINANCIAL CAPITAL
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MANUFACTURED 
CAPITAL
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ussion and Analysis

As we continue to expand, 
our manufactured capital 
is crucial in creating and 
delivering value to our 
stakeholders. The civil 
constructions, 

equipment and infrastructure 
developed at our power 
plants form a major part of 
our project investment and 
act as a core aspect of our 
energy generation process.

Deploy
Manufactured

Capital

Upgrade

Insure

Build or acquire

Maintain

electromechanical equipment from 

and China to ensure that they operate 
with least interruptions at their maximum 
capacities. This way, we make the best use 
of water resources and feed the national 

usage of electricity generated burning 

regulations stipulated in SPPAs and comply 
with safety regulations in building and 
operating our power plants.
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Maintenance of our manufactured 
capital is vital in ensuring that the power 
plants operate smoothly and generation 
of electricity remains uninterrupted. A 
preventive maintenance guideline is in 
place at our hydropower plants focused 

equipment in a systematic manner. The 
frequency of inspection of the components 
is decided based on the nature of their 
function within the system and required 
interval maintenance is carried out 
according to the maintenance manual 
provided by the manufacturer. Preventive 
maintenance is mostly scheduled during 
the dry season to ensure that there is 
minimal loss of generation units, resulting 
in the lowest opportunity cost. Critical 
inspection of the machines is carried out 
after operating in high rainfall seasons 
to determine the condition of the 
components of the turbines, generators, 
penstock and civil constructions. 

During the year a technical team 
comprising of technicians across all power 
plants was formed led by the operations 
manager. The team is responsible for 

faults at any power plant as well as 

commissioning phase of power plants.

For connectivity of our projects with the 
national grid, we invest in the construction 
of transmission lines through which we 
facilitate expansion of CEB’s transmission 
network. At locations with regular line 

team at our expense to oversee incidents 
causing line interruptions and take 
immediate actions to restore such faults 
together with the CEB.

MANUFACTURED CAPITAL

Automation of second trash rack at Upper Agra Oya

Regular maintenance at our power plants

Weir Constructed at Upper Huluganga
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Supervisor

Breakdown Reporting

Manager 
Operations

Civil Electrical Mechanical

Senior Civil Engineer Electrical Engineer Senior Mechanical 
Engineer

Managing Risk
We have obtained commercial insurance 
covers for all our power plants against 

and strike and malicious damage to 

equipment and other assets. We also 
maintain spares of all vital components of 
the electromechanical system to readily 
address any failures.

The policy of safeguarding the assets 

our operations with equal emphasis on 
employee engagement. 

engineering team to safeguard the smooth 
functionality of assets and a disaster 
management protocol is in place with clear 
responsibility and reporting lines.

In the event of the relevant engineer being 
uncontactable, the Operations Manager 
should be informed, failing which the 
Managing Director should be contacted. 
Our incident management process also 

any breach of security or risk to any asset 
to the Operations Manager for immediate 
action. 

Upgrades
During the year under review we upgraded 
our manufactured capital in the following 

 Automation of second trash rack at 
Upper Agra Oya to minimize human 
involvement in ensuring smooth water 

 Installation of an automatic voltage 
regulator system at Moragaha Oya

 Installation of grid indicator alarm panel 
at Giddawa

 
system at Gomale Oya
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SOCIAL
AND
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Resus shares the outcomes 
of its corporate growth with 
employees, the society, 
suppliers, customers and 
other stakeholders to 
jointly build a harmonious 
entity and contribute to its 
growth. Hence it values the 
importance of social and 
relationship capital and has 
taken initiatives to become 

corporate citizen.

Customers 
102-6, 201-4, 203-1

Customers are at the heart of our value creation process and thus require careful 
nurturing. Our sole customer is The Ceylon Electricity Board (CEB). We have built good 
relationships with those at the CEB over the years and they are aware that we are an 

Power Purchase Agreements (SPPA), struck with the CEB. 

Project CEB inter-connection point

Giddawa MHPP Ukuwela, Matale

Okanda MHPP Polgaswatte, Deraniyagala Ratnapura

Upper Agra Oya MHPP Nuwara Eliya

Gomale Oya MHPP Dikellakanda, Deraniyagala Ratnapura

Moragaha Oya MHPP Ukuwela, Matale

Ranwala Oya MHPP Ratnapura
*MHPP - Mini Hydro Power Project
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In accordance with prevailing 
tax regulations, the imported 
electromechanical equipment for 
hydropower projects that have entered in 
to SPPAs with the CEB are exempted from 
VAT and NBT. 

We comply with rules and regulations 
stipulated in SPPAs and comply with 
safety regulations in building and 
operating our power plants. We, as a 
policy, manage relationships on ethical 

and programmes of the CEB and other 
stakeholders. 

Government Institutions
We ensure that all our business activities 
are conducted in accordance with the 
conditions promulgated by applicable 
regulatory bodies, with zero tolerance for 
any deviations or violations. Following are 
such project approving institutions we 
have regular contact with:

 Ceylon Electricity Board

 Central Environmental Authority

 Department of Irrigation

 National Water Supply and Drainage 
Board

 Forest Department

 Department of Wildlife Conservation

 Pradeshiya Saba

We manage relationships with 
Government agencies on ethical grounds 
with responsible and transparent 
policies and systems. We ensure that our 
projects are constructed and operated in 
accordance with the guidelines stipulated 
in approvals. Additionally, we also actively 

agencies. 

102-9, 308-1, 414-1

Our approach to engaging with suppliers 
extends beyond mere supply contracts, 

trust, loyalty and shared values, creating 
business sustainability for all parties.  
Just as our partnerships with them are 

relationships are professional, transparent, 
and fair so that we may be assured of 
operational excellence at all times. We 
maintain open communications with our 
suppliers and their continuous willingness 
to undertake supply and construction 
contracts bear testimony to the mutual 
trust and assurance developed over the 
years. We follow best industry practices 

existing practices as necessary, in line with 

from all competitive advantages. We 
screen all our overseas and local suppliers 

Supplier Selection and 
Monitoring Criteria

 Technical standards

 

 Reliability

 Compliance to applicable laws 
and regulations

 Compliance to relevant 

standards

 Sustainable practices of 
sourcing raw materials

 Adherence to environmental 
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SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

 

 Ethical business conduct

 Health and safety at project 
sites

 Human rights laws and 
regulations

who provided electromechanical 
equipment for the Giddawa hydropower 

their bids for our new projects and 
providing regular maintenance advice for 
operational plants. 

Our team visits overseas suppliers and in 
turn invites them to our project sites too 
in order to strengthen relationships and 

The value of orders that we placed with 
overseas electromechanical suppliers are 
given in the table below:

Project Supplier and country Amount 
(Rs. Million)

Year of 
investment

Giddawa MHPP

Okanda MHPP

Gomale Oya MHPP

Moragaha Oya MHPP

Upper Huluganga MHPP

Ranwala Oya MHPP

Total 515.0

204-1

suppliers and thereby indirectly partake 
in the economic growth of our country. 
In selecting local civil contractors, Resus 
considers organizations that share similar 
values and commitments.

 The amounts paid to local civil contractors 
for the development of our hydropower 

AMOUNTS PAID TO LOCAL CONTRACTORS (Rs. Mn)

231.00

194.00

93.03

 93.62 

l Giddawa MHPP (2008/09)
l Okanda MHPP (2010/11)
l Gomale Oya MHPP (2015/16)
l Moragaha Oya MHPP (2015/16)
l Ranwala Oya MHPP (2018/19)
l Upper Huluganga MHPP (2018/19)- Ongoing

65.30 

88.80

Turbine-Generator from WKV-Germany for 
Giddawa plant

Turbine-Generator from ZECO-Italy for 
Gomale Oya Plant
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Communities 
413-1, 2, 203-2

Empowering the communities within 
which we operate and supporting 
their development is part of the ethos 
of Resus. During the project phase as 
well as in the operation phase, there 
is a high level of involvement with the 
surrounding communities and we build 
strong relationships with them based on 

often keenly engage in the course of 
project development and our team 
shares day to day working life with the 

employment opportunities to the nearby 
villagers during the project development 
phase and then permanent employment 
once the plants are operational. Our 
infrastructure investments extending 
beyond our operations and contributing to 
the economy as a whole, are provided in 
the ensuing sections. There were no actual 
or potential negative impacts on local 
communities from our operations.

102-16, 205-3

Strong ethical values course through the 
veins of our Company and we ensure all 
our operations are conducted maintaining 
exceptional levels of honesty, integrity 
and respect towards all our stakeholders. 
Employees are encouraged to do right 
things and in right ways so that our actions 

manner. All our employees are given a 

three languages developed as a collective 

which is also periodically reviewed to 
ensure it stays relevant in a changing 
business environment. All new employees 

need to read and agree to the code and 
we conduct awareness sessions at regular 
intervals to disseminate our values to 
all employees. Furthermore, we use 
numerous mechanisms to monitor ethical 
compliance through formal and informal 
channels. We have a ‘whistleblowing’ 
policy which we believe encourages good 
conduct among employees, which in turn 
enhances the organisation’s corporate 
image. The Group did not come across 
any incidents of corruption during the year 
under review.

203-1

Our Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) initiatives addressed under our 
unique people and planet responsibilities 
(PPR) focus on providing tangible and 
sustainable support towards empowering 
and developing communities. The 
philanthropic element of our social 

donations usually focused on improving 
the quality of life of the rural communities 
in and around the areas of operational 
power plants and project development 
sites. 

308-2, 408-1, 409-1, 414-2, 
416-2, 418-1, 419-1

as well as social compliance is regarded 
as high priority. For development projects 

follow the relevant protocol to identify 
all applicable legal and social needs, 
monitor and document new changes and 
requirements of the relevant regulatory 

Measure of Compliance Status

Negative environmental 
impacts in the supply 
chain and actions taken

Operations and 

risk for incidents of child 
labour

Operations and 

risk for incidents of 
forced or compulsory 
labor

Negative social 
impacts on society, the 
environment, labour 
practices or human 
rights in the supply 
chain and actions taken 

compliance concerning 
the health and safety 
impacts of products and 
services

Substantiated 
complaints concerning 
breaches of customer 
privacy and losses of 
customer data

laws and regulations in 
the social and economic 
area

framework and undertake awareness 
sessions to educate employees to ensure 
compliance.
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HUMAN
CAPITAL
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Our Team 
The team of employees at Resus is at the 
core of the Groups sustainability, driving 
the growth of business and ensuring 
the creation of shared values. With 
employees from diverse backgrounds 
and ethnicities, varying talent, skills and 
education is brought in, enabling us to 
strengthen our value creation process. 
All human resource activity within the 
Group is coordinated centrally with the 
Human Resource Department through 
formalized governance structures and 
policy framework to ensure uniformity in 
the application of policies. Consistency 
and fairness in the application of policies 
has enabled us to maintain high levels of 
employee engagement and satisfaction.

Workforce 
Management at 

Resus

Critical skills
gap analysis

Workforce 
planning

Recruiting

Organizational 
socializationPerformance

management

Training and 
development

Compensation
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102-7, 8, 405-1

Employees of the Group by age, gender and category

Category

Age

Total
Percentage 

of total 
employees

M F M F M F

Board of Directors 7
Senior Management
Middle Management
Executives 7%

7%

7%
Total 22 5 47 1 17 0 92 100%

executive directors) recognized on the 
basis of head count, as reported in the 
section above are legally recognized as full 
time basis permanent employees of the 
Resus Group. 

401-1

Our recruitment policy aims to enrich 
the Group’s talent pool to create an 
empowered workforce. This in turn leads 
to better positioning in the market and 
creation of sustainable value.

New recruits by age, gender and region 

Region

Age

Total

Percentage 
of total 

employees
M F M F M F

Nuwara Eliya
Colombo* 7%
Total 15 2 1 0 0 0 18 20%

* Includes Board of Directors

NEW RECRUITS BY REGION

lKandy   lKegalle   lNuwara Eliya   lColombo

5

2

6
5

NEW RECRUITS BY EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY

0 2 4 6 8 10

Board of Directors

Senior Management

Middle Management

Executives

Supervisory Staff

Technical Staff

Power Plant Staff

Other Non-Executives
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404-1,2

The human resources at Resus need to 
be retained and nurtured and thus we 

and overseas based on individual or 

the conclusion of the training programme 
to gauge the improvements in skills and 
competencies. Employees who undergo 
training share their learnings with the rest 
of the team members thus maximizing the 

of these training programmes is to ensure 
the continuous development of skills and 
competencies of all employees which in 
turn leads to improved present and future 
standards of performance. During the year 
employees underwent training targeted 
towards improving technical as well as soft 
skills. In recognition of the importance of 
leadership for top management personnel, 
three members of our senior management 
team were sent for a training at the Indian 
School of Business during the year under 
review. 

All new recruits follow a thorough 
induction programme which is designed 
to familiarize the employees with the 
company’s operations, systems, practices, 
culture and values. 

In addition, the Group is also an approved 
training partner for numerous professional 

 The Institute of Chartered Accountants 

 National Apprentice and Industrial 
Training Authority (NAITA)

 Higher National Diploma in 
Engineering (HNDA)

Average training hours per employee category

Category Total 
Employees

Total Training 
Hours

Average Training Hours per 
Employee Category

Board of Directors 7
Senior Management
Middle Management
Executives

Total 92 408 78.3

401-1

Our employee retention policy is underpinned by a range of factors to include a 

Region

Age

Total

M F M F M F

Nuwara Eliya

Colombo*

Total 7 0 2 0 6 0 15

Total 
Training 
Hours

Total 
Training 

Hours 280  128
 3  21Average training 

hours per gender
Average training 

hours per gender

HUMAN CAPITAL
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Performance Management
404-3

Our performance evaluation system 
assesses employees based on criteria and 
goals mutually agreed with the supervisors 

out, assessing the status of achievement of 
the set goals and a review of competencies 
is carried out to identify training and 
development needs, in line with business 
requirements. This process assists in 
building a target driven culture, rewarding 
and recognizing employee commitment 
and developing employee strengths.

401-2,3

transport allowances, reimbursements 
of professional membership fees, gym 
memberships and health insurance 

employees of the Group are entitled to 
maternity leave. However, none of these 
employees took maternity leave during the 
current and prior year.

We host numerous socializing activities 
focused on teamwork, bonding and 
building harmony and unity among 
employees. Outbound training 
programmes, trips, quiz competitions, 
formal and informal social gatherings are 
usually featured every year. 

403-2

Ensuring a safe and hazard free work 
environment is a key area of focus and 
steps have been taken to ensure that 
health and safety concerns are prioritized 
and addressed across the Group. Alarm 

cameras have been installed to ensure that 
all premises, and employees remain secure 
at all times. The Company provides its 
employees all necessary safety equipment 
to be used at work and stringent health 
and safety regulations have been put in 

TURNOVER BY EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY

0 2 4 6 8 10 12

Other Non-Executives

Power Plant Staff

Technical Staff
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place to ensure safety helmets, boots and 
belts are worn at construction sites and 
safety standards are adhered to. There 
were no injuries during the year under 
review. 

Our power plants operate in a 

Non-discrimination
406-1

In accordance with the doctrines inculcated 
within our system, we do not discriminate 
on the grounds of gender, age, race, 

indicator. We unceasingly encourage our 
employees who have concerns of serious 
misconduct or any breach or suspected 
breach of law or regulation that may 
adversely impact the Company, to come 
forward and express such concerns 
without fear of punishment or unfair 
treatment through our ‘whistleblowing’ 
and ‘open door’ policies.

Employee concerns are addressed as far 
as possible by the senior management 
and those that are not satisfactorily 
addressed can be directly discussed 

Executive Director (Mr. U P Egalahewa, PC) 
under the whistleblowing policy. 

Our Head of Human Resources regularly 
visits the project sites and speaks to the 
site employees to understand and address 
their needs and concerns

There were no incidents of discrimination 
during the year, hence no corrective action 
was required.

HUMAN CAPITAL

Safety at work

'5s' System

102-41

Resus has sustained harmony among 
employees in all possible ways and the 
Group does not have any collective 

dispute resolution between the company 
and the employees is signed between 

employees of Upper Agra Oya Hydro 

employees joined the Group with the said 

had been registered with the said trade 
union. Upper Agra Oya Hydro Power (Pvt) 

agreement is continuing at power plant 

currently registered with the said trade 

total employees of the Group.

the mechanism of dispute resolution 
between the company and the employees.
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INTELLECTUAL
CAPITAL
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The knowledge and expertise at Resus 
has been built and enhanced through 
years of experience of operating in the 
power sector across various geographic 
locations and social conditions. Our 
team has gained invaluable expertise in 
managing projects in extremely backward 

learnings in the biomass segment, which 

political interferences. We create, shape 
and enhance the value of our intellectual 
capital via an ongoing process of learning 
through the experiences gained and 
challenges faced and overcome to provide 
increasing value to all our stakeholders.

Processes, Systems and Procedures

Resus has developed a comprehensive 
suite of processes, systems and 
procedures which clearly set out 
responsibilities and outline the principles 
to guide decision making achieve our 
business strategy and deliver business 
promises. Our operations are guided by:

 Environmental Management Systems 

 Project Management Manuals 

 Financial and Accounting Controls and 
Systems 

 Human Resource Policies 

These policies are implemented to ensure 
that we do business in accordance with set 

parameters and benchmarks. Our systems 
are continually reviewed and updated to 

business objectives.

We possess a working culture that is 
open and supportive, with learnings 
continuously being shared amongst each 

experiences gained and fostering mutual 
growth. Our team is rich with a diverse 
mix of experience and skills, nurturing a 
dynamic culture built on the core values 
of the Company. Our ability to attract, 
develop and retain talent has ensured 
that we have one of the most skilled and 
experienced teams in the sector.
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It is in our best interests, as well as of 
all our stakeholders, that we conduct 
our operations in a fair and transparent 
manner. We are committed to upholding 
the highest standards of ethics and 
integrity in all our operations. We ensure 
that our activities comply with relevant 
rules and stipulations laid down by 
regulatory bodies and there were no 

regulations during the year.

Creativity and Innovation

The drive for innovation is an attribute that 
is endorsed in the enhancement of our 
intellectual capital base. Providing creative 
and innovative project designs has been a 
key development feature during the year. 
We take pride in our team’s capability of 

Ranwala Oya which was commissioned 
during the year. We are conscious about 
the ways in which we work, and are 
always ready to adapt new technologies to 
streamline and enhance our operations. 

Awards

The awards and recognition we 
have received bear testimony to our 
commitment to quality and excellence, the 
strength of our knowledge base and the 
quality of our systems and processes.

CORPORATE AWARDS
Silver Award in the Power and 
Energy Sector

SUSTAINABILITY AWARDS
Winner – Small and Medium Scale 
Enterprises

ACCA

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL
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Our approach to managing 
environment capital is vital 
in every facet as we are in 
the business of producing 
electricity from renewable 
energy sources.  Renewable 
Energy, which is considered 

Therefore, we are proud 

It determines the main parameters of 

of the main elements in our operation.

in value creation from hydropower 

for generation of electricity through 
diversion of the river is released back to 
the same river without causing any impact 
to the water resource. All our projects 
are built preserving an uninterrupted 

human livelihood. Hence, water is used as 
a renewable source of energy.

At the project design stage, we are 
extra cautious to optimize the design 

resources economically and in an 
environmentally safe manner. Any 

design can cause poor utilization of natural 
resources and impact the investment 
negatively.

Our environmental regulations encompass 
standard guidelines stipulated in the 
approvals of Central Environmental 
Authority, other connected government 
institutions and also our own guidelines. 
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objectives and targets:

 Conservation and optimisation of the 
use of natural resources

 Waste management

 Minimisation of environmental 
pollution during construction and 
operation

 Optimise project design parameters to 
minimise environmental impact

 Engage with stakeholders to minimise 
the environmental impact from our 
activities

Management
102-11

Unlike other forms of capital such as 
buildings and infrastructure, which can 
be created or refurbished, most natural 

replenished. ‘Resus’ stands for REnewable 
energy and SUStainability and our 
philosophy revolves around the highest 

ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL

level of care towards the environment 
when developing and operating projects. 
We are committed towards adhering to 
good environmental practices, ensuring 
that the natural resources are preserved 
for future generations.

Pre-Construction Phase

A full assessment of the environmental 

a Project Charter Prior to starting a 

aspects associated with the projects in line 
with our environmental policy, objectives 
and targets. This becomes part of the 
Environmental Management Plan. 

Pre-Construction

• Project Charter

• Detailed assessment 
of impacts

Construction

• Continuous 
monitoring

• Corrective and 
preventive measures

Post-Construction

• Review of EMS

• Continuous 
Improvement

Input Management
Water
Energy
Material

Output Management
Noise
Waste
Emissions

Biodiversity
Compliance and 
Protection Expenditure

Environmental Management System (EMS)

Hydropower
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Description Water Usage Percentage recycled

Municipal water

Drinking water

Surface water

Total 279,392,148 204,456,634 279,930,231 204,454,690 - - 99.99% 99.99%

Assumption :

Construction Phase

We ensure full compliance of 
environmental regulations as stipulated by 
the Central Environmental Authority and 
also our own environmental management 
policy. Our own policies are crafted 

going beyond the requirements of the 
state regulations. 

Our inhouse project development team 
is an integral part of our Environmental 
Management Plan (EMP) and they have 
vouched to act in line with the plan. Our 
Senior Operations Manager regularly 
visits sites to monitor compliance with the 
Environmental Management Plan and take 
corrective and preventive measures on 
the issues that arise. External contractors 
who work at our project sites should also 
abide by our environmental regulations, 
which become a contractual requirement 
in construction agreements.

Post-Construction Phase

The Environmental Management System 
is reviewed at planned intervals, to 
ensure its continuing suitability, adequacy 

management reviews include any 
decisions and actions related to possible 

changes to the environmental policy, 
objectives, targets and other elements of 
the Environmental Management System, 
consistent with the commitment to 
continuous improvements.

A considerable amount of capital has been 
spent to maintain excellent aesthetics and 
a pleasant and green environment with 
tastefully contrived landscaping to blend 
with the natural environment. This way we 
try to ensure that we develop and operate 
renewable energy projects in the best 

Input Management
Water Management 
303-1,2,3 - 306-1

Resus engages in development and 
operation of small hydropower projects 

where water is not retained in large 

projects. 

In the process of power generation, 
the water used for generating power is 
released back to the same river without 
any pollution or consumption. In fact, the 

free in the power generation process 

stream gets collected at trash racks placed 
in the diversion channel and is removed. 
The water discharge destination is located 

from the diversion point of all our power 
plants.

During project construction, the water 
in the river is regularly tested for water 
pollution engaging external consultants 
from the Industrial Technology Institute or 
Water Board. 

Contractors are not allowed to build any 
structures in close proximity to the river 
and we strictly monitor standard sanitation 
facilities and proper disposal of waste to 
ensure that water is not polluted by any 
activities at project sites.

At our power plants, we consume water 

and other purposes, and municipal water 
is not consumed except at Giddawa and 
Moragaha Oya. We carry out regular 
observations to identify issues which could 
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Energy Management
302-1

As a green energy generator, we try our 
level best to reduce the consumption of 
energy across all companies of the Group. 

using natural lighting when buildings are 

air conditioning units rather than central 
air conditioning to control usage when not 
required, setting air conditioning units at 

0
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375.42

450.39

183.22

82.85
106.34

255.86

ENERGY CONSUMPTION BY SOURCE (GJ)

n 2018/19            n 2017/18

Diesel for
vehicles

Petrol for
vehicles

Electricity*

* Electricity for our internal use at hydropower 
stations are partly self-generated

Material Management 
301-1

We have adapted our internal process to 

two ongoing projects Ranwala Oya Project 
and Upper Huluganga project contributed 
towards the given material consumption 
during the current year. All material has 

been purchased from external suppliers 
and we ensure that they operate 
under ethical social and environmental 
standards.
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NON-RENEWABLE MATERIAL CONSUMPTION 
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Aggregate
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Output Management
Noise Management 

Noise level testing is regularly carried out 
at our project sites engaging professional 
institutes, such as Industrial Technology 
Institute or National Institute of 
Occupational Health and Safety. A baseline 
noise level test is carried out before the 
start of construction work at project 
sites. Thereafter, the tests are carried out 

monitoring.

As per the Noise Control Regulation 

Environmental Act, we measure noise 

Day time – Maximum Level – 75 dB

Night time – Maximum Level – 50 dB

All blasting operations are carried out 

mining engineer. Civil contractors are 
not permitted to use machineries in bad 
conditions at project sites to ensure that 
construction activities do not disrupt the 
surrounding environment.

Waste Management 
306-2

Resus promotes group wide waste 
segregation as a green practice, 
implemented in partnership with local 
authorities and other waste management 
solution providers. 

KITCHEN WASTE (KG)

1,747

2,238

n 2018/19            n 2017/18

Type: Non-hazardous
Method of Disposal: Composting

ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL
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PAPER AND OTHER (KG)

2,218

2,156

n 2018/19            n 2017/18

Type: Non-hazardous
Method of Disposal: Nearest paper disposal agency/
Waste dumping location of local authority

It is mandatory as per our organizational 
regulations for contractors to clean the 
site on a daily basis and all waste should 

burning and use of polythene is strictly 
prohibited at construction sites and at 
power plant premises. Penalties are 
imposed for any violation of regulations.

Daily inspections are conducted by an 
assigned representative of the project 
team to observe any deviations from waste 
management procedures.

E-Waste

of computers and accessories, mobile 
phones, batteries and other electrical and 
electronic appliances in a responsible 
manner. However, due to the low quantity 

Emissions Management 
305-1,2,3,5,6,7

We operate our hydropower plants in 

project construction, machinery deployed 
by contractors may have emissions and 
discharges. All machinery should be in 
good condition without unacceptable 
levels of emissions. Machinery in bad 
conditions are not allowed to be used at 
our project sites.

All electromechanical equipment at our 

which are manufactured under strict 
European Standards.

Through this, we ensure that our 

and in accordance with acceptable 
engineering norms and they are 
environmentally sustainable.

Carbon footprint:

Heavy machineries are not used in project 
construction areas, and emissions from 
machinery such as concrete mixtures, 
excavators, and small generators used 

for internal consumption needs.

As a result, greenhouse gas emissions 
from these activities are not considered 

our business operation helps to reduce the 
carbon footprint considerably.

The nature of our business itself 
contributes towards the reduction of the 
carbon footprint, as electricity generation 
from renewable energy sources replaces 
electricity generation from burning fossil 
fuel.

Emission Category

Fuel Consumption for 
Generators

Fuel Consumption for 
Machineries at sites

Fuel Consumption for 

business use

Electricity Consumption

Business purpose air travel

Generation of electricity from our fully owned hydropower plants helps to reduce the CO  
emissions from generation of electricity with fossil fuel.
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 emission

hydropower plants

 emission from our fully owned 
hydropower plants

year generation based weighted average 

Sustainable Energy Authority.

ozone depleting substances (ODS), NOx, 

produced from our business.

carbon emissions and promoting 
environmental sustainability, we have 
taken measures towards implementing 
a Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) 
at our operational hydropower plants 
Gomale Oya and Moragaha Oya and at 
the Upper Huluganga hydropower project 
which is currently under development. 

reductions, the above three plants have 
registered with the UNFCC (The United 
Nations Framework Convention on Climate 
Change) and will be operating with proper 
monitoring, recording and reporting of 
greenhouse gas emissions.  

Resus attaches great importance to 
environmental protection and green 

development with an aim to build an 
environment friendly enterprise. 

Biodiversity 
304-1,2,3,4

Our projects are developed and operated 
with minimum impact to the natural eco 
system and livelihood on the Earth. The 
importance of conservation of biodiversity 
of the environment is readily addressed in 
our Environmental Management System.

At the project planning stage, we devote 

activities to ensure that variability within 
species, between species, and between 
ecosystems are preserved and maintained.

Okanda, Gomale Oya and Ranwala Oya 
projects are adjacent to protected areas of 
high biodiversity.

We have constructed a covered water 
channel to protect wild animals from 
falling into it in Okanda and diverted the 
channel path to save and minimize the 
damage to trees in the surroundings. 

were found in the area where the 
Gomale Oya project is being constructed. 
Construction is done on a narrow strip on 

species were not found in the excavated 

the faunal species due to construction is 

Fauna and Flora species found at Gomale 

Conservation 
Status

No. of 
Fauna 

Species

No. of 
Flora 

Species

Near 
Threatened

Vulnerable

Critically 
Endangered

Endangered

Compliance and Expenditures 
307-1

compliances with environmental laws and 

review and the previous year.

The Group incurred considerable 
additional costs in designing the projects 
to preserve and protect the environment 
and its biodiversity in the project areas.

ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

Chairman’s Statement

resolutely.

We aspire to maintain the highest level of governance standards ensuring that through sound policies and procedures 
these standards and values are cascaded across the Group. The Board is supported by robust and independent audit and 

culture at Resus, where everyone demonstrates the core values of Creativity, Integrity, Concern for People and Planet, 
Obsession for Performance and Sense of Urgency, making sound governance practices a way of life through our daily 
operations of the Group.

The level of compliance with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued jointly by the Institute of 

Code) and the disclosure requirements and continuing listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange are described in the 
Report below.

 

H A S Madanayake

Chairman



Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/1977

Corporate Governance Framework
102-18,22,25,36

framework, which is integral in creating sustainable shareholder 
value. The corporate governance framework at Resus Energy 

transparency, which are essential for the creation, enhancement 
and maintenance of a sustainable business model. The Group has 
also established its own set of internal benchmarks, processes and 
structures in meeting accepted best practices in governance, which 
have lent credence to Resus’s continuous and consistent value 
creation for its stakeholders. Our cohesive governance structure 

and responsibilities, ensures greater accountability and clear 
reporting lines.

The Company operates with an Integrated Governance framework 
with due considerations given to Corporate Governance Best 
Practice issued jointly by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE). 

The following sections describe in detail:

 The components of the Resus Corporate Governance System

 Resus’ level of compliance with the above Code comprising the 
following seven sections

A – Directors

B – Directors’ remuneration

C

D – Accountability and Audit

E – Institutional Investors

F – Other Investors

G – Sustainability Reporting

 The monitoring and review mechanisms in place to ensure 
strict compliance to the Group’s Governance policy in order to 

EXTERNAL REGULATIONS INTERNAL REGULATIONSINTERNAL GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

 Code of Best Practice on 
Corporate Governance issued 

 Corporate Governance rules 
published by the CSE

 GRI Guidelines on Sustainability

Independent Audit

 Internal Audit

 Articles of Association

 Environmental Management 
System

 Project Management Manual

 Code of Business Ethics

 Internal Control System

 Enterprise Risk Management 
Framework

 HR Policies

Shareholders

Board of Directors

Managing Director

Audit
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Transactions
Review

Committee
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Role of the Chairman and Managing Director

The role of Chairman is separate from that of the Managing Director which is in line with best practices in Corporate Governance ensuring 

Executive Director appointed by the Board.

Responsibilities of the Board Chairman’s Responsibilities Managing Director’s Responsibilities

 Formulation, implementation and 
monitoring the business strategy

the integrity of information, internal 
controls, business continuity and risk 
management

 Compliance with laws, regulations and 
ethical standards

 Consider the interest of all stakeholders 
in corporate decisions

 Ensure that the new Board members are 
given appropriate induction

of the Board

 Approve the agenda for each Board 
meeting

 Ensure that the Board members receive 
accurate, timely and clear information to 
enable the Board to take sound decisions

 Ensure regular meetings, the minutes of 
which are accurately recorded and where 
appropriate include the individual and 
collective views of the Directors

 Facilitate and encourage discussions 
among all Directors in the decision making

 Represent the views of the Board to the 
public

 Formulate, obtain approvals and 
implement the Company’s strategies 

operations of the Company

 Developing and recommending 
budgets to the Board

 Continuously monitoring and reporting 
to the Board on the performance of the 
Company

 Establishing an optimum organizational 
structure which is appropriate for the 
execution of Company’s Strategy

 Compliance with all the applicable legal 
and regulatory obligations

business risk of the company’s 
operations and identifying the potential 
risks of the company 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

Board Composition and Expertise

Board Composition Tenure Industry Expertise

  Executive Managing Director

 

  

  Alternate Directors l < 3 Years   l 3-6 Years   l 6< Years

29%14%

57%

0 1 2 3 4

Legal

Engineering

Investment
Banking

Accoun�ng
& Finance
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Board Sub-Committees and Areas of Oversight

Board Committee Composition of Directors Areas of Oversight
Audit Committee

 Mr. U P Egalahewa PC*

 Mr. I S Somaratne**

 Integrity of Financial Statements
 Risk management
 Business Ethics
 Internal Controls
 Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
 External Audit
 Internal Audit

Remuneration 

Committee

 Mr. U P Egalahewa PC (C)*

 Mr. H A S Madanayake**

 The Company’s remuneration philosophy and the principles of its 
remuneration policy

 Company’s framework of executive remuneration 

 The level and structure of remuneration for Senior Management
Related Party 
Transactions Review 
Committee

 Mr. U P Egalahewa PC (C)*

 Mr. I S Somaratne**

Related Party Transaction Policy

Disclosures on related party Transactions in the annual report

(C) - Committee Chairman  *Independent Non-Executive Directors   ** Non-Executive Directors

Board Evaluation

year, the Board in consultation with the 

medium and long term objectives of the 
Company. The annual appraisal of the 
Managing Director is carried out by the 

targets of the Board of Directors set out 
are evaluated at the end of the year by the 
members. Further, the Board considers 

on an annual basis and concluded for the 

to be free from any business or other 
relationship that could reasonably be 
perceived to materially interfere with 
the exercise of their unfettered and 
independent judgment.

Ethics

Our values and code of ethics ensure that 
we do the right business in the right way, 
by complying with relevant laws which in 
turn enhances the trust placed on us by 
our stakeholders. Our Code of Conduct 
& Ethics is communicated to employees 
in all three languages, detailing our 

Antiharassment and Whistle Blowing 
which applies to all employees and covers 
all operations. It is aligned to our values, 
standards, and procedures. The Board 
is not aware of any material violations 
of any of the provisions of the Code of 
Conduct and Ethics by any Director or 
Corporate Management Member of the 
Bank. Please refer to Chairman’s statement 

declaration that there is no violation of the 
code of conduct and ethics.

Remuneration

Our Remuneration Policy for the Board 

Personnel seeks to motivate and 
reward performance while reinforcing 
the importance of complying with 
regulatory requirements, stakeholder 
expectations and corporate values. The 
remuneration committee consists of two 

The remuneration package of the MD is 
structured to link rewards to corporate 
and individual performance. Further, 
our remuneration framework for the 
MD is designed to create and enhance 
value for all stakeholders and to ensure 
there is strong alignment between the 
short term and long term interest of the 
Company while taking into consideration 
the level of remuneration paid by the other 
comparable companies, performance and 
risk factors entailed in his job.
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The agenda and Board papers for the 
meetings are sent 7 days before the 

to review the same. Urgent board papers 
are included on an exceptional basis. Care 
is taken to ensure that the Board spends 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

company, as well as compliance matters. 
The Board is aware of other commitments 

them to discharge their responsibilities 

Attendance at the meetings held during 

Name of Director Directorship Status Board Audit 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Related Party 
Transactions Review 

Committee

Total No. of Meetings 6 4 3 4
Mr. H A S Madanayake Chairman

Managing Director

Mr. I S Somaratne

Mr. U G Madanayake

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC
Mr. C D Coomasaru Alternate Director to Mr. U G Madanayake

Key areas and activities considered in 2018

During the year the board held six meetings. A synopsis of the key areas discussed is 
illustrated as follows:

Strategy and Business

 Review and approval of policies, key metrics 
and structural changes

 Approval of annual budget

 Funding arrangements

Governance

 
nominations and appointments

 Board evaluations and action plan to implement 
recommendations

 Review of policy frameworks

Risk and Oversight

 Review of overall risk policy 

 Approval of the Financial Statements and the Annual Report

 Compliance review

 Review of impacts from operating environment

 Review of shareholder communications

 Review of feedback from institutional investors

 Review of regulatory reviews



Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/1981

SEC and CA Sri Lanka 
Code Reference No

Level of Compliance

A. Directors

A.1

The Board

The Company should be headed by a Board, which should direct, lead and control the Company.

All Directors possess the skills, experience and knowledge with a greater sense of integrity and independent 
judgement. The Board gives leadership in setting the strategic direction and establishing sound internal 
control framework for the successful accomplishment of business goals.

A.1.1

Frequency of  Board 
Meetings

Adoption status : Adopted

The Board generally meets on a quarterly basis, but more frequently whenever it is necessary.

Accordingly, four Board Meetings are scheduled annually to determine the Company’s strategic direction, 

Board between scheduled Board meetings.

Apart from taking decisions at Board meetings, the Board also takes decisions via circular resolutions which 
are required to be signed by all the Directors.

A.1.2

Responsibilities 
of the Board

Adoption status : Adopted

A.1.3 

Compliance with 
laws and access 
to independent 
professional advice

Adoption status : Adopted

The Board collectively and the Directors individually act in accordance with the laws of the country of 
operation which are applicable to the business enterprise. The Board of Directors ensures that procedures 
and processes are in place to ensure that the Company complies with all applicable laws and regulations.

A procedure has been established for Directors to seek independent professional advice from external 

review that Board members sought such advice which were attended to by the Company.
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A.1.4 

Board Secretary

Adoption status : Adopted

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Board Secretary. The Board Secretary ensures 
that Board procedures, relevant statutory obligations and other applicable rules and regulations are 
complied with.

The Board Secretary had provided the Board with support and advice relating to Corporate Governance 

duties.

The appointment and removal of the Board Secretary is a decision taken by the Board as a whole.

Health insurance cover has been provided by the company for key management personnel.

A.1.5

Independent judgment

Adoption status : Adopted

The Directors exercise independent judgement in all decisions pertaining to strategy, performance, resource 
allocation and standards of business conduct.

issues of strategy, performance, resource utilization and business conduct.

A.1.6

Dedication of adequate 

the Board and Board 
Committees

Adoption status : Adopted

meetings and have also contributed to decision making through circular resolutions where necessary. The 

A.1.7

Calls for resolutions

Adoption status : Adopted

Any Director can call for a resolution to be presented to the Board if deemed necessary.

A.1.8

Induction and Training 
for  Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

The Board recognizes the need for continuous training and expansion of knowledge and undertakes such 
professional development as they consider necessary in assisting them to carry out their duties as Directors. 

In addition, an induction programme is in place for newly appointed Directors to familiarize them with the 
Company’s business operation and internal control system.

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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A.2

Chairman and  Chief 
to ensure a balance of power and authority, in such a way that any individual has no unfettered powers 
of decisions.

The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are segregated at Resus. The Chairman’s main 

operations of the Company and the Group.

A.2.1

Separation of the 
responsibilities 
of Chairman and 
Managing Director

Adoption status : Adopted

A clear division of responsibility is maintained between the Chairman and the Managing Director ensuring 
that the balance of power and authority is preserved.

A.3

Chairman’s Role

The Chairman should lead and manage the Board, ensuring that it discharges its legal and regulatory 

Board function.

A.3.1

Role of the Chairman

Adoption status : Adopted

are encouraged to participate in decision making and their views are obtained to ensure that the Board 

for the Chairman’s role.

A.4

Financial Acumen

A.4.1

knowledge

A.5

Board Balance

There should be balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors so that no individual or small group of 
individuals can dominate the Board’s decision-making.

and the ability to exercise independence and judgment when taking informed decisions.

A.5.1

Executive Directors
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A.5.2

Independent Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

Implementation of the requirements of the new code are under discussion.

A.5.3

Independence of 
Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

Independent Directors are independent of management and free of business dealings that may be perceived 
to materially interfere with the exercise of their unfettered and independent judgement.

A.5.4

Signed declarations 
of independence by 

Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

Independent Directors have submitted written declarations of their independence as required by Schedule J 

A.5.5

Criteria to evaluate 

Executive Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with the exercise of their unfettered and independent 
judgment.

A.5.6

Alternate Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

A.5.7, A.5.8

Senior Independent 

Director

Adoption status : Adopted

A senior Independent Director has not been appointed by the Board as the Chairman and the Managing 
Director are separate persons.

The requirement to appoint a Senior Independent Director does not arise under this Code.

A.5.9

Executive Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

year.

A.5.10

Recording of concerns 
in Board minutes

Adoption status : Adopted

All concerns raised by the Directors on matters of the Company and wished to be recorded have been duly 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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A.6

Supply of Information

Management should provide time bound information in a form and of quality appropriate to enable the 
Board to discharge its duties.

accurate decisions.

A.6.1

Management’s 
obligation to provide 
appropriate and timely 
information

Adoption status : Adopted

The Board was provided with appropriate and timely information by the management by way of Board 
papers and proposals to discharge its duties. In the event the information volunteered by management is not 
adequate, the Directors are free to make further inquiries and obtain the necessary information.

Members of the senior management team made presentations to Directors on important issues relating 

Chairman ensured that all Directors were briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The Directors have 
free and open contact with the senior management of the Company.

A.6.2 

Adequate time for 

meetings

Adoption status : Adopted

The minutes, agenda and connected discussion papers are dispatched to the Directors in advance to facilitate 

A.7

Appointments to the 
Board

A formal and transparent procedure should be followed for the appointment of new Directors to the 
Board.

A.7.1

Appointments to the 
Board

Adoption status : Adopted

The Board has not established a Nominations Committee to make recommendations on Board 
appointments. Hence, appointments to the Board are made collectively and with the consent of all the 
Directors.

A.7.2

Assessment of Board 
composition

Adoption status : Adopted

An assessment is made of the Board composition to ascertain whether the combined knowledge and 
experience of the Board matches the strategic demands facing the Company when considering new 
appointments to the Board.
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A.7.3

Disclosure of details 
of new Directors to 
shareholders

Adoption status : Adopted

Details of new Directors are disclosed to the shareholders at the time of their appointment by way of public 
announcements to the Colombo Stock Exchange as well as in the Annual Report, along with a brief resume of 

  the nature of his expertise in relevant functional area 

A.8

Re-election

All Directors should submit themselves for re-election at regular intervals and at least once in every three 

A.8.1

Executive Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

One half of the Directors including the Executive Director retire by rotation at each Annual General Meeting 
in conformity with the Articles of Association of the Company.

A.8.2

Election of Directors by 
the shareholders

Adoption status : Adopted

A Director appointed during the year by the Board retires at the next Annual General Meeting of the 

A.8.3

Resignation

Adoption status : Adopted

Written communication is obtained by any director resigning prior to his term as per the Articles of 
Association of the Company.

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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A.9

Appraisal of Board 
Performance

The Board should periodically appraise its own performance against the pre set targets in order to ensure 
that the Board responsibilities are satisfactorily discharged.

A.9.1,9.2,9.3,9.3,9.4

Appraisal of Board 

Performance

Adoption status : Adopted

The Board carries out an evaluation of its performance in the discharge of its key responsibilities. Each 

A.10

Disclosure of 
Information in respect 
of Directors

shareholders.

A.10.1

Disclosure of 
information in respect 
of Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

A.11

Appraisal of the Chief 

A.11.1

Managing Director

Adoption status : Adopted

A.11.2

Evaluation of the 
performance of the 
Managing Director

Adoption status : Adopted



88 Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/19

SEC and CA Sri Lanka 
Code Reference No

Level of Compliance

B. Directors’ Remuneration

B.1

Remuneration 
Procedure

The Company should have a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive 

involved in deciding his/her remuneration in order to avoid the self-review threat.

B.1.1

Remuneration 
Committee

Adoption status : Adopted

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on remuneration policy for the 
Executive Director and the corporate management that is consistent with the objectives of the Company.

The Committee determines and agrees with the Board the broad policy framework for the remuneration of 
the Managing Director. The Managing Director participates at meetings when deciding the remuneration of 
the corporate management in order to recruit, retain and motivate the corporate management team.

B.1.2, B.1.3 
Composition of 
the Remuneration 
Committee

Adoption status : Adopted

Director.

A Board approved Terms of Reference of the Committee and a Remuneration Policy for the Board of 
Directors are in place.

B.1.4 

Remuneration of 

Directors

Adoption status : Adopted

In terms of the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of Directors as a whole determines the fees 

B.1.5 

Consultation of the 
Chairman and access 
to professional advice

Adoption status : Adopted

The Committee consults the Chairman on proposals relating to the remuneration of the Executive Director 
and has access to professional advice in discharging their duties.

B.2 

Level and make-up of 
Remuneration

and retain the Directors needed to run the Company successfully. A proportion of Executive Directors’ 
remuneration should be structured to link rewards to the corporate and individual performance.

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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B.2.1, B.2.2 

the remuneration of 
the Managing Director

Adoption status : Adopted

Directors needed to run the Company.

The remuneration package of the Managing Director is structured to link rewards to corporate and individual 

Company.

B.2.3 

Comparison of 
remuneration with 
other companies

Adoption status : Adopted

The Committee ensures that remuneration of executives at each level of management is competitive and in 
line with their performance. Surveys are conducted as and when necessary to ensure that the remuneration 
is on par with those of competitive companies.

B.2.4 

Comparison of 
remuneration with 
other companies in the
Group

Adoption status : Adopted

It also takes into consideration data concerning executive pay among the related group companies when 
determining annual salary increases.

B.2.5 

Performance related 
payments to the 
Managing Director

Adoption status : Adopted

Performance based incentives have been determined to ensure that the total earnings of the Executive 
Director is aligned with the achievement of objectives and budgets of the Company.

B.2.6

Executive share 
options

B.2.7

Deciding the 
Executive Directors’ 
Remuneration

Adoption status : Adopted

In deciding the remuneration of the Managing Director, the Committee takes note of the provisions set out in 
Schedule E of the Code.

B.2.8

Early termination of 
Directors

Not applicable to the Board except for the Managing Director who is an employee of the Company and his 
terms of employment is governed by the employment contract.
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B.2.9

Early termination not 
included in the initial 
contract

B.2.10

Executive Directors

B.3

Disclosure of 
Remuneration

The Company should disclose the Remuneration Policy and the details of Remuneration of the Board as a 
whole.

B.3.1

Disclosure of 
Remuneration

Adoption status : Adopted

C. Relations with Shareholders

C.1

 Constructive use of 
the Annual General 
Meeting and Conduct 
of General Meetings

The Board should use the Annual General Meeting to communicate with shareholders and encourage 
their active participation.

C.1.1

Notice of AGM

Adoption status : Adopted

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the relevant documents are published and dispatched to the 

C.1.2

Separate resolution for 
all separate issues

Adoption status : Adopted

The Company proposes a separate resolution for each item of business at the Annual General Meeting giving 
shareholders the opportunity to vote on each issue separately.

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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C.1.3

Use of proxy votes

Adoption status : Adopted

The Company records and counts all proxy votes lodged on each resolution and the percentage of votes for 
and against on each resolution.

Arrangements are being made to comply with the requirement to provide the following information on the 
Company Website:

• Number of shares in respect of which proxy appointments have been validly made

• Number of votes for and against the resolution

• Number of shares in respect of which the vote was directed to be withheld

C.1.4

Availability of all 

Chairmen at the 
Annual General 
Meeting

Adoption status : Adopted

General Meeting to answer questions raised by shareholders if so requested by the Chairman of the Board.

C.1.5

Procedures of voting at 
General Meetings

Adoption status : Adopted

The procedure governing voting at the Annual General Meeting is circulated with the Notice of Meeting.

C.2

Communication with 
hareholders

C.2.1 

Channel to reach all 
shareholders of the 
Company

Adoption status : Adopted

The Company disseminates information pertaining to the performance of the Company through the 
publication of the Interim Financial Statements and the Annual Report in a timely manner. Information is 
provided to the shareholders prior to the Annual General Meeting to give them an opportunity to raise any 
issues relating to business of Resus, either verbally or in writing prior to the Annual General Meeting.

Immediate announcements are also made to the Colombo Stock Exchange on any information which is 
considered price sensitive.

The Company Secretary could be contacted in relation to any shareholder matter.
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C.2.2

Policy and 
methodology for 
communication with 
hareholders

Adoption status : Adopted

The Company will focus on open communication and fair disclosure, with emphasis on the integrity, 
timeliness and relevance of the information provided. The Company will ensure information is 
communicated accurately and in such a way as to avoid the creation or continuation of a false market.

C.2.3

Implementation 
of the policy and 
methodology for 
communication with 
shareholders

Adoption status : Adopted

The Company adopts a two way communication policy with shareholders. At the Annual General Meeting, 
the Company openly welcomes any suggestions from the shareholders and shareholders may elect to 
receive the Annual Report in printed form. The Board of Directors is prepared to provide comprehensive 
explanations for queries of shareholders.

C.2.4, C.2.6

Contact person 
in relation to 
shareholders’ matters

Adoption status : Adopted

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly available information and provide 
comments and suggestions to Directors or Management of the Company.

Such questions, requests and comments should be addressed to the Company Secretary.

C.2.5 

Process to make 
all Directors aware 
of major issues 
and concerns of 
shareholders

Adoption status : Adopted

The Company Secretary shall maintain a record of all correspondence received and will deliver as soon as 

shareholder correspondence and will direct the Company Secretary to send the response to the particular 
shareholder.

C.2.7

The process of 
responding to 
shareholder matters

Adoption status : Adopted

C.3

Major and Material 
Transactions

Directors should disclose to shareholders all proposed material transactions which would materially alter 
the net asset position of the Company, if entered into.

C.3.1, C.3.2

Major transactions

Adoption status : Adopted

or Group is communicated to the shareholders and required approvals are obtained in accordance with the 
Statutes. 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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D. Accountability and Audit

D.1

Financial Reporting
position, performance and prospects.

D.1.1, D.1.2, D.1.3

Statutory and 
Regulatory Reporting

Adoption status : Adopted

The Board ensures that the quarterly and annual Financial Statements of the Company and Group are 

The responsibility statement of the Managing Director and Head of Finance has been set out on page 

compliance with relevant accounting standards and that the system of risk management and internal control 

D.1.4

Directors’ Report in the 
Annual Report

Adoption status : Adopted

Section.

D.1.5

Statement of Directors’ 
and Auditors’ 
responsibility for the 
Financial Statements

Adoption status : Adopted

The declarations required to be made by the Board is given in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors.

D.1.6

Management 
Discussions and 
Analysis

Adoption status : Adopted

D.1.7

Summoning an Extra 
Ordinary General 
Meeting (EGM) to 
notify serious loss of 
capital

Adoption status : Adopted
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D.1.8

Related party 
transactions

Adoption status : Adopted

recording and disclosure of related party transactions.

applicable to such transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the Company and is 
comparable with that what is applied to transactions between the Company and its unrelated parties.

accordance with the guidelines of the Code of Best Practices on Related Party Transactions issued by the 

Related Party Transactions Review policy and procedures are discussed in the Related Party Transactions 

D.2

Risk Management and 
Internal Control

The Board should have a process of risk management and a sound system of internal controls to 
safeguard shareholders’ investments and Company’s assets.

D.2.1, D.2.2

Annual evaluation of 
the risks facing the 
Company and the 

system of internal 
controls

Adoption status : Adopted

The Board is responsible for establishing a sound framework of risk management and internal control and 

published is reliable, and also ensures that the Company’s assets are safeguarded against unauthorised use 
or disposition.

Directors. The Audit Committee on quarterly basis reviews the Risk Register of the Company and the Group 

internal controls to address them to a satisfactory level. Strategies adopted by the Company to manage its 

D.2.3

Internal audit function

Adoption status : Adopted

The internal auditors under the direction of the Audit Committee are tasked with reviewing the adequacy 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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D.2.4

Review of the process 

risk management and 
internal controls by the 
Audit Committee

Adoption status : Adopted

D.2.5 

Responsibilities 
of Directors in 
maintaining a sound 
system of internal 
control

Adoption status : Adopted

D.3 Audit Committee The Board should have a formal and transparent arrangement in selecting and applying the accounting 

with the Company’s External Auditors.

D.3.1

Composition of the 
Audit Committee

Adoption status : Adopted

The said Committee met four times during the year.

The Board Secretary functions as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The Managing Director, Head of Finance, Senior Project Managers, and the External and Internal Auditors 
attend meetings on invitation.
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D.3.2

Terms of Reference of 
the Audit Committee

Adoption status : Adopted

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee has been approved by the Board. Duties of the Committee 
encompasses:

  Recommending Financial Statements to the Board for approval

 Company’s compliance with applicable regulations

 Assess the Company’s ability to continue as a Going Concern

 function.

The Audit Committee is authorised to obtain external professional advice and to invite outsiders with relevant 
experience to attend if necessary. The Committee also has full access to information in order to investigate 
into matters relating to any matter within its terms of reference.

D.3.3

Disclosures of the 
Audit Committee

Adoption status : Adopted

D.4

Related Party 
Transactions Review 
Committee

The Board should establish a procedure to ensure that the Company does not engage in transactions 
with “related parties” in a manner that would grant such parties “more favourable treatment” than that 
accorded to third parties in the normal course of business.

D.4.1, D.4.2

Composition of Related 
Party Transactions 
Review Committee

Adoption status : Adopted

The said Committee met four times during the year.

The Board Secretary functions as the Secretary to the Related Party Transactions Review Committee.

D.4.3

Terms of Reference 
of the Related Party 
Transactions Review 
Committee

Adoption status : Adopted

The Terms of Reference of the Related Party Transactions Review Committee has been approved by the 
Board. Duties of the Committee have been set out in the report of the Related Party Transactions Review 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE



Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/1997

SEC and CA Sri Lanka 
Code Reference No

Level of Compliance

D.5

Code of  Business 
Conduct and  Ethics

The Company should develop a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and members of the 
senior management team.

D.5.1

Code of Business 
Conduct and Ethics

Adoption status : Adopted

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the Directors are committed to the 
Code and the principles contained therein.

A set of guidelines for ethical behaviour has also been compiled to assist employees to act responsibly and to 
make the correct decisions in their day to day work. The Code of Conduct explains the principles for dealing 
with business associates, general partners, colleagues and the community in which the Company operates.

The Corporate Governance Report sets out the manner and extent to which the Company has complied with 
the principles and provisions of the Code.

The Board is not aware of any material violations of any of the provisions of the Code of Business Conduct 
and Ethics by any Director or any corporate management member of the Company.

D.5.2

Reporting of price 
sensitive information

Adoption status : Adopted

Material and price sensitive information is reported in accordance with relevant regulations.

D.5.3

Disclosure of share 
information of 

Personnel

Adoption status : Adopted

D.5.4

Chairman that there 
is no violation of the 
Code of Conduct and 
Ethics

Adoption status : Adopted

D.6 Corporate 
Governance 
Disclosures

The Company should disclose the extent of adoption of Best Practices in Corporate Governance.
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D.6.1

Disclosure of 
Corporate Governance

Adoption status : Adopted

This requirement is met through the presentation of this report.

E. Institutional Investors

E.1 Shareholders 
voting

Institutional shareholders are required to make considered use of their votes and encouraged to ensure 
their voting intentions are translated into practice.

E.1.1

Institutional 
shareholders

Adoption status : Adopted

The Company is committed to maintain good communications with investors. The Chairman conducts a 
structured dialogue with the shareholders based on the mutual understanding of objectives and ensures that 
the views of the shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole.

are relevant and concern to the general membership.

The Managing Director has regular discussions with key institutional shareholders to share highlights of the 
Company’s performance and also with the view to obtaining constructive feedback. The feedback obtained 
from institutional shareholders is communicated to the entire Board by the Managing Director.

E.2 

Evaluation of 
Corporate Governance 
initiatives

Adoption status : Adopted

Institutional investors are encouraged to give due weight to all relevant factors drawn to their attention when 
evaluating the governance arrangements particularly in relation to Board structure and composition.

F. Other Investors

F.1

Individual shareholders

Adoption status : Adopted

Individual shareholders are encouraged to carry out adequate analysis and seek the independent advice 
prior to investing or divesting directly in shares of the Company.

F.2

Individual shareholders 
voting

Adoption status : Adopted

All shareholders are encouraged to participate at meetings of the Company and a Form of Proxy 
accompanies each Notice providing shareholders who are unable to attend such meeting the opportunity to 
cast their vote.



Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/1999

SEC and CA Sri Lanka 
Code Reference No

Level of Compliance

H. Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting (ESG)

H.1 ESG Reporting
stakeholders to assess how ESG risks and opportunities are recognized, measured, managed and 
reported. 

H.1.1

ESG Information

Adoption status : Adopted

H.1.2

Environmental 
Indicators

Adoption status : Adopted

H.1.3

Social Factors

Adoption status : Adopted

H.1.4

Governance

Adoption status : Adopted

H.1.5

Board’s role on ESG 
factors

Adoption status : Adopted

ESG principles are embedded in our operations and considered in formulating our business strategy 
and reported in a holistic manner within this report. Integrated reporting and Global Reporting Initiative 
Guidelines are followed in reporting and disclosure of ESG factors. 

G A K Nanayakkara H A S Madanayake
Managing Director Chairman
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CSE Rule Number and Description Status of 
Compliance

Section Reference in the 
Annual Report

Board of Directors

ii) Principal activities of the Entity and its subsidiaries during the year and any 
changes therein

Annual Report of the Board 
of Directors

Share Information

iv) The Public Holding percentage Share Information

Share Information

vi) Information pertaining to material foreseeable risk factors of the Entity Enterprise Risk 
Management

vii) Details of material issues pertaining to employees and industrial relations of the 
Entity

Corporate Governance, 
Human Capital

viii) Extents, locations, valuations and the number of buildings of the Entity’s land 
holdings and investment properties

Notes to the Financial 

Business Operation

ix) Number of shares representing the Entity’s stated capital Notes to the Financial 
Statements, Share 
Information

x) A distribution schedule of the number of holders in each class of equity Share Information

xi) The following ratios and market price information:

  Dividend per share 
  Dividend pay out 
  Net asset value per share
  Market value per share

Financial Highlights, Five 
Year Summary, Financial 
Capital, Share Information

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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 Compliant    N/A 

CSE Rule Number and Description Status of 
Compliance

Section Reference in the 
Annual Report

Notes to the Financial 

xiii) If during the year, the Entity has raised funds either through a public issue, rights 

a statement as to the manner in which the proceeds of such issue has been 

b if any shares or debentures have been issued, the number, class and 

c any material change in the use of funds raised through an issue of Securities

xv)  Disclosures pertaining to Corporate Governance practices in terms of Rules Corporate Governance

of the Entity as per Audited Financial Statements, whichever is lower. Details of 

set out separately

The details shall include, as a minimum; 

i The date of the transaction 
ii The name of the Related Party
iii The relationship between the Entity and the Related Party
Iv The amount of the transaction and terms of the transaction
v The rationale for entering into the transaction

Notes to the Financial 
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 Compliant    N/A 

Compliance with Section 7.10 of the Listing Rules on Corporate Governance issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange

CSE Rule and Description Status of Compliance Section Reference in 
the Annual Report

Board of Directors

7.10.1 Non-Executive Directors (NEDs)

Five NEDs out of total of Six 
Directors

Corporate 
Governance

7.10.2 (a) Independent Directors (IDs) 

Two IDs out of Five NEDs

Corporate 
Governance

7.10.2 (b) Declaration of Independence

NEDs have submitted the 
declaration in the prescribed 

format

Corporate 
Governance

7.10.3 (a) Disclosures relating to Directors

Names of Independent Directors should be disclosed in the Annual Report
Corporate 
Governance

7.10.3 (b) Disclosures relating to Directors

The basis for determining the independence of NEDs, if criteria for 
independence is not met

The Board has determined
that criteria for independence is 

met for IDs

Corporate 
Governance

7.10.3 (c) Disclosures relating to Directors

A brief resume of each Director should be included in the Annual Report, 
including his area of expertise

Board of Directors

7.10.3 (d) Disclosures relating to Directors

Upon appointment of a new Director a brief resume of the Director should be 
submitted to the Exchange

CSE Announcements dated 

Directorates

Corporate 
Governance

Remuneration Committee

7.10.5 (a) Composition

The Committee shall comprise of a minimum of two Independent Directors or 
of Non–Executive Directors, a majority of whom shall be independent

The Remuneration Committee
consists of three NEDs of which

two are independent

The Chairman of the
Committee is an Independent

Corporate 
Governance

Report of the 
Remuneration 
Committee

7.10.5 (b) Functions

The Committee shall recommend the remuneration payable to the Executive 
Report of the 
Remuneration 
Committee
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 Compliant    N/A 

CSE Rule and Description Status of Compliance Section Reference in 
the Annual Report

7.10.5 (c) Disclosure in the Annual Report

The Annual Report should set out the names of the members of the Committee, 
a statement of Remuneration Policy and the aggregate remuneration paid to 

Report of the 
Remuneration 
Committee

Audit Committee

7.10.6 (a) Composition

The Committee shall comprise of a minimum of two Independent Directors or 
of Non–Executive Directors, a majority of whom shall be independent

The Audit Committee consists 
of three NEDs of which two are 

independent

Corporate 
Governance

The Chairman of the Committee 

Executive Director

Report of the Audit 
Committee

Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the CEO and the CFO 
shall attend meetings

The Managing Director and 
the Head of Finance attend 

Audit Committee meetings by 
invitation

Chairman or one member of the Committee should be a member of a 
recognized professional accounting body

One Committee member is a 
member of The

Chartered Institute of 

7.10.6 (b) Functions

Overseeing the preparation, presentation and adequacy of disclosures in the The terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee adopted by the 
Board covers the areas outlined

Corporate 
Governance

Report of the Audit 
Committee

Overseeing the processes to ensure that internal controls and risk management 
are adequate

Assessing the independence and performance of the external Auditors

of the external Auditors and approving their remuneration and terms of 
engagement

7.10.6 (c) Disclosure in the Annual Report

The names of the members of the Audit Committee Corporate 
Governance

Report of the Audit 
Committee

The basis of determination of the independence of Auditors

A report of the Audit Committee setting out the manner of compliance with 
their functions
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

 Compliant    N/A 

Compliance with Section 9 of CSE Listing Rules and the Code of Best Practice on Related Party Transactions issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka w.e.f 1st January 2016

Applicable Rule Status of 
compliance

Section  
Reference in 
the  Annual 
Report

9.3.2 Disclosures in the Annual Report

must be presented in the Annual Report:

   Name of the Related Party
   Relationship

   Value of Related Party Transactions as a % of Equity and as a % of Total Assets
   Terms and Conditions of the Related Party Transactions
   The rationale for entering into the transactions

Notes to the 
Financial 
Statements 

Income Statement and in the case of group entity, the consolidated revenue) as per the latest 

   Name of the Related Party
   Relationship
   Nature of the transaction

   Terms and Conditions of the Related Party Transactions

Notes to the 
Financial 
Statements

setting out the following:
   Names of the Directors comprising the Committee

   The policies and procedures adopted by the Committee for reviewing the Related Party 
Transactions

   The number of times the Committee has met during the Financial Year

Report of the 
Related Party 
Transactions 
Review 
Committee

of the compliance with these Rules pertaining to Related Party Transactions or a negative 
Annual Report 
of the Board of 
Directors
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Disclosures required by the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007

Section reference in 
the Companies Act 

Disclosure Requirement Reference in the Annual 
Report

The nature of the business of the Group and the Company together with any 
change thereof during the accounting period

Signed Financial Statements of the Group and the Company for the accounting 
period completed

Financial Statements and 

Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements of the Group and the Company Independent Auditors’ 

Accounting Policies and any changes therein

Particulars of the entries made in the Interests Register during the accounting 
period

Annual Report of the Board 

accounting period

Corporate Donations made by the Company and its subsidiaries during the 
accounting period

Information on the Directorate of the Company and its subsidiaries during and 
at the end of the accounting period

services rendered during the accounting period

Auditors’ relationship or any interest with the Company and its subsidiaries Annual Report of the Board 

Acknowledgment of the contents of this Report and signatures on behalf of the 
Board

Annual Report of the Board 
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

Requirement

The ‘Code of Best Practice on Corporate 

jointly by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the Institute of Chartered 

the Board of Directors present a statement 
on internal controls.

The Board of Directors is responsible 
for the Company’s system of internal 
controls and for reviewing its design and 

this responsibility to the Audit Committee 

concerns in this regard.

The Audit Committee of Resus Energy 

to ensure the system of internal controls 
both at Company level and individual 

The Committee obtains quarterly 

by each Senior Manager of the respective 
functional areas and the Managing 

of internal control of the Group functions 
without major control weaknesses and 
breakdowns. The Audit Committee carries 
out annual independent discussions with 
external auditors of the Company and 
reports to the Board of Directors of any 
material control aspects revealed from 
such discussions for immediate attention 
of the Board.

There is an ongoing process in every Audit 
Committee meeting agenda to review 
the risk matrix of the Company and the 
Group to continuously identify, evaluate, 
and manage risks faced by the Group. The 
risk register requires the management 
to identify all risks at Company level and 
individual subsidiary levels and prioritize 
risks based on the set rating framework. 
The Audit Committee reviews the risk 
rating and obtains explanations from the 
Managing Director and functional heads 
regarding any updates and risk responses. 
The risk register with the comments 
of the Audit Committee is tabled at 
Board meetings and Board discussions 
are carried out to ensure appropriate 
procedures are in place to evaluate and 

ensures that the disclosures of risks and 
mitigation actions provide meaningful, 
information for facilitating the decision 
makers about the Company and do not 
give a misleading impression for their 
decisions.

Based on the said processes, the Board 

the Company and the Group has been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance 

reporting and the preparation of Financial 
Statements for external purposes has 
been done in accordance with applicable 
Accounting Standards and regulatory 
requirements.

By order of the Board,

Professor Malik Ranasinghe

 

N K L Perera

Head of Finance

G A K Nanayakkara

Managing Director 
 

H A S Madanayake 
Chairman
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REPORT OF THE 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition of the Committee

The Audit Committee is formally 

committee consists of the following 

Professor K A M K Ranasinghe* 
Chairman

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC*

Mr. I S Somaratne 

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara 
Managing Director

Mr. N K L Perera Head of Finance

Secretary to the Committee

Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) 

Meetings

Name Attendance

Ranasinghe
Mr U P Egalahewa PC
Mr I S Somaratne

Nexia Corporate 
Consultants (Pvt) 

The Audit Committee held four 
meetings during the period under 
review. The proceedings of the Audit 
Committee are reported to the Board.

The Audit Committee is established for 
the purpose of assisting the Board in 

the integrity of the Financial Statements, 
risk management, business ethics, 
internal control, compliance with legal 
and regulatory requirements, review 
of External Auditors’ performance and 
independence and internal audit.

The Audit Committee discusses the 
Company’s quarterly and annual Financial 
Statements prior to publication with the 
management and the External Auditors, 
including the extent of compliance with Sri 

required by other applicable laws, rules, 
objectives and guidelines. The Audit 
Committee also regularly discusses the 
operations of the Company and its future 
prospects with the management and is 

been taken into account in the preparation 
of the Financial Statements. The Audit 

 Oversee the preparation, presentation 
and adequacy of disclosures in the 
Financial Statements in accordance with 

 Review appropriateness and changes in 
Accounting Policies

judgments made by the management

reporting related regulations and 
requirements 

 Oversee the processes to ensure that 
internal controls and risk management 
measures are adequate 

 Assess the independence and 
performance of the external Auditors 

 Recommend to the Board the 

removal of the External Auditors and 
approving their remuneration and terms 
of engagement 

 Review the Company’s ability to continue 
as a Going Concern

The main focus of the Internal Audit is 
to provide independent assurance on 
the overall system of internal controls, 
business and associated risk management 
and governance based on internal controls, 
and compliance with laws and regulations 
and established policies and procedures of 
the Group. The Audit Committee monitors 
and reviews the scope of the Internal Audit 

of the Internal Audit function.

The Audit Committee also reviews the 

development and operational risks faced 
by the Group. The Committee reviews 
the Risk Register on a quarterly basis 
in order to identify and assess the risks 

obtained from management regularly 

control system and risk management 
system, and compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations. The Board of 
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Directors and Audit Committee obtain 
and are guided by technical advice from 
external consultants as required.

The key risks associated with the 
business are given in the Enterprise Risk 

Ernst & Young were appointed as the 
External Auditors of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries. Audit plans and the scope 
of work and a letter of engagement 
are formulated in consultation with the 
Finance Division of the Company.

independence of the External Auditors 

any event or service that could result in 

has been given to the level of audit and 

Subsidiaries.

The Audit Committee meets the External 
Auditors on an annual basis and reviews 

The performance of the External Auditors 
has been discussed with the senior 
management of the Company and the 
Audit Committee has recommended to 
the Board that Ernst & Young, Chartered 

subject to approval by the shareholders at 
the Annual General Meeting.

Based on the reports submitted by 
the External Auditors and the Risk 
Management system of the Company, 

the control environment, and of the 
implementation of the Group’s accounting 
policies and operational controls and 

Group is secure.

Professor  Malik Ranasinghe

REPORT OF THE 
AUDIT COMMITTEE
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REPORT OF THE 
REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE

Composition of the Committee

The Committee was established 
for the purpose of recommending 
the remuneration of the Executive 
Directors. The Committee also 
approves the remuneration of the 
members of the Senior Management 
on the recommendations made by the 
Managing Director. The committee 
consists of the following members 

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC* Chairman

Professor K A M K Ranasinghe*

Mr. H A S Madanayake 

Mr G A K Nanayakkara 
Managing Director

Ms C Ranaweera Head of HR

Secretary to the Committee

Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) 

Meetings

Name Attendance

Mr U P Egalahewa PC

Ranasinghe
Mr H A S Madanayake

Ms C Ranaweera
Nexia Corporate 
Consultants (Pvt) 

The Committee held three meetings 
during the period under review. 
The minutes of meetings of the 
Remuneration Committee are 
circulated to all members of the 
Board.

 Determine and recommend to the 
Board, the Company’s remuneration 
philosophy and its principles, ensuring 
that these are in line with the business 

term interests of the Company 

 Make recommendations to the Board 
on the Company’s framework of 
executive remuneration and its cost, 
and to determine on behalf of the Board 

conditions of employment (including 
compensation entitlements) for 
Executive Directors 

 Make recommendations to the Board 
and monitor the level and structure of 
remuneration for Senior Management 

 Make recommendations to the Board 
regarding the content of the Board’s 
Annual Report to shareholders on 
Directors’ Remuneration (including the 
Company’s policy on Executive Director’s 
remuneration, details of individual 
remuneration and other terms and 
conditions)

Advisers

The Committee is authorised by the Board 
to seek appropriate professional advice 
inside and outside the Company as and 
when it considers this necessary.

Remuneration to Directors

The Remuneration paid to Directors during 
the year under review is indicated in Note 

receive a fee for serving on the Board and 

receive any performance related incentive 
payments.

The Company does not have an Employee 
Share Ownership Plan for Directors and 

The annual evaluation of the Committee 
was carried out by the Board during 
the year and it was concluded that 
the Committee continues to operate 

U P Egalahewa PC



110 Resus Energy PLC       Annual Report 2018/19

REPORT OF THE RELATED 
PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
REVIEW COMMITTEE

Composition of the Committee

The Company established the Related 
Party Transactions Review Committee 

consists of the following members 

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC* Chairman

Professor K A M K Ranasinghe*

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara 
Managing Director

Mr. I S Somaratne 

Mr. N K L Perera Head of Finance

Secretary to the Committee

Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) 

Meetings

Name Attendance

Mr U P Egalahewa PC

Ranasinghe

Mr I S Somaratne
Mr H A S Madanayake

Nexia Corporate 
Consultants (Pvt) 

The Committee held four meetings 
during the period under review. The 
minutes of all meetings are properly 
documented and communicated to the 
Board of Directors. 

The Finance Division submits a 
comprehensive report on related party 
transactions to the Committee. Any 
concerns of the Committee will be 
reported to the Board of Directors on a 
continuous basis.

The Committee meets at least 
quarterly, to monitor, review and 
report to the Board on matters 
pertaining to related party 
transactions.

Objective

Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee was formed to ensure that the 
Company complies with the requirements 
of the Code of Best Practices on Related 
Party Transactions issued by the Securities 

capture related party transactions and to 
report to the Board of Directors. 

 Recommend and develop terms of 
reference of the RPTRC for adoption by 
the Board of Directors of the Company.

 Review of related party transactions as 
required in terms of the provisions set 

 Make recommendations to obtain 
shareholder approval for applicable 
related party transactions as per the 

 Obtain ‘competent independent 
advice’ from independent professional 

experts with regard to the value of the 
substantial assets of the related party 
transaction under consideration. 

 Make immediate market disclosures on 
applicable related party transactions as 

 Make appropriate disclosures on related 
party transactions in the Annual Report 

rules in the Code of Best Practice on 

by the Group as at the date of this Report.

U P Egalahewa PC

Review Committee
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
OF MANAGING DIRECTOR AND 
HEAD OF FINANCE
The Financial Statements of Resus Energy 

Financial Statements of the Company and 
its subsidiaries (the Group) for the year 

and presented in compliance with the 
requirements of the followings: 

issued by The Institute of Chartered 

Exchange, 

 Code of Best Practice on Corporate 
Governance issued jointly by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 

in the preparation of the consolidated 
Financial Statements are appropriate 
and are consistently applied, except 
unless otherwise stated in the notes 
accompanying the Financial Statements. 

estimates that involved a high degree of 
judgment and complexity were discussed 
with the Audit Committee and Company’s 
External Auditors. There are no departures 
from the prescribed Accounting Standards 
in their adoption. Comparative information 

to comply with the current presentation.

The Board of Directors and the 
management of the Company accept 
responsibility for the integrity and 
objectivity of these Financial Statements. 
The estimates and judgments relating to 
the Financial Statements were made on 
a prudent and reasonable basis, in order 

and fair view and the form and substance 
of transactions reasonably present the 

knowledge, the Financial Statements, 

Annual Report, fairly present all material 

results of the operations and the Cash 
Flows of the Group during the year under 

has adequate resources to continue in 
operation and have applied the Going 
Concern basis in preparing these Financial 
Statements.

The Company has taken proper and 

of internal control and accounting 
records, for safeguarding assets, and for 
preventing and detecting frauds as well as 
other irregularities, which are reviewed, 
evaluated and updated on an ongoing 
basis. We have evaluated the internal 
controls and procedures of the Group 

and material weaknesses in the design 
or operation of internal controls and 

frauds that involves management or other 
employees. However, there are inherent 
limitations that should be recognised in 
weighing the assurances provided by any 
system of internal control and accounting.

Report of Independent Auditors

The Financial Statements were audited 
by Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered 
Accountants, the Independent Auditors 

Audit Committee

by Messrs Ernst & Young. The Audit 
Committee meets periodically with the 
Independent Auditors to review the 
manner in which these Auditors are 
performing their responsibilities, and 
to discuss auditing, internal control and 

complete independence, the Independent 
Auditors have full and free access to the 
members of the Audit Committee to 
discuss any matter of substance.

The Audit Committee Report is given on 
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knowledge: 

 The Group has complied with all 
applicable laws, regulations and 
guidelines and there is no material 
litigation against the Group other than 

Financial Statements.

 The system of internal control is 

a true and fair manner, the form 
and substance of transactions, and 
reasonably present the Company’s 

Going Concern basis in preparing these 
Financial Statements. 

 All taxes, duties, levies and all statutory 
payments by the Group and all 
contributions, levies and taxes payable 
on behalf of and in respect of the 

relevant provided for.

G A K Nanayakkara

Managing Director

N K L Perera 

Head of Finance

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
OF MANAGING DIRECTOR AND 
HEAD OF FINANCE
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MANAGING RISK
102-15

A sound risk management system is vital 
for any organization to keep up with the 

environment. At Resus, we seek to create 
value for all stakeholders by ensuring that 

mitigate a range of operational, structural, 

otherwise prevent the organisation from 
meeting its objectives. 

Risk Governance

 Evaluating and determining the nature 
and extent of the risks it is willing 
to take in achieving the Company’s 
strategic objectives

 Ensuring that the Company establishes 
and maintains appropriate and 

control systems

 Promotes the sustainable and healthy 
development of the Company

 Enhances the Company’s operation 
management level and risk prevention 
ability 

The Board oversees the management 
in the design, implementation and 
monitoring of the risk management 
and internal control systems, and the 

systems. The Board and the management 
of Resus continuously face the challenge of 
striking a balance between the downside 
exposure and upside potential to optimize 
or preserve value creation. 

Risk Management Framework

The risk management framework of the 

to ensure continued growth within a 
competitive and uncertain business 
environment. Accordingly, we operate an 
integrated risk management system, while 

associated with our business.

The strong risk management culture at 
Resus reinforces the key elements of 
the risk management framework which 
comprise risk governance, risk appetite 
and risk management tools. 

Risk Management Process

The Board has delegated the responsibility 

Group’s risk management process to the 

managing framework has been established 
under which the risks are being assessed 
at enterprise level, subsidiary level and 
business unit process level.

are reviewed by the Audit Committee at 
the Company level as well as at the Group 
level. Under the Framework, the risks 
are prioritized and business units use 
both preventive and mitigation controls 
to manage risk exposures within the 
prescribed tolerance limits. 

1st Line of Defense:

Departments

2nd Line of Defense:
Risk and compliance 
management

3rd Line of Defense:
Independent 
Assurance by Audit 
Committee

management of risks 
in the business

Primary responsibility 

management

Assist in determining 
the risk capacity, risk 
appetite, strategies 
and policies for risk 
management

Provide oversight, 
support, monitoring 
and reporting 

Challenge and review 

processes and controls

Provides independent 
assurance on overall 

framework

RISK GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MANAGEMENT TEAM
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Risk Grid 

Risks are assessed based on their 
likelihood of occurrence and the probable 
impact of the event. Accordingly, the risks 

low.

The impact of the event is assessed by 
determining the loss or damage it would 
cause and the extent of the impact. 

on the basis of past experience and 
the preventive measures in place. The 
Risk Register is updated quarterly and 
discussed at each Audit Committee 
meeting along with the operational 
compliance statements submitted by the 
heads of business units.

We have introduced various risk 
management templates into our project 
management process to facilitate project 
managers to adopt risk management 
protocols at project levels to ensure that 
projects are completed and delivered 
within anticipated parameters. 

Medium Very High

HighLowLI
KE

LI
H

O
O

D
IMPACT

4

3

2

1

1 2 3 4

has been established to encourage 
fruitful dialogue and debate among team 
members in drafting a risk matrix for their 
respective projects.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY, RISK APPETITE

BOARD OVERSIGHT & SENIOR MANAGEMENT INVOLVEMENT 
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RISK AWARENESS CULTURE

Risk Assessment
Risk Measurement

Risk Prioritization

Risk Monitoring

Reduce
the risk

Accept
the risk

Avoid
the risk

Transfer
the riskLO

W
H

IG
H

HIGHLOW

Impact

Managing Risk

MANAGING RISK
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Major Risks and Uncertainties 

and are set out below. The nature and the scope of risks are subject to change and not all of the factors listed below are within the control 
of the Company.

Risk Potential Exposure Mitigating Actions
Priority Strategic 

Impact
2018/2019 2017/2018

1. Business Risk 

to inaccurate 
projections on 
business parameters

 Deviation from expected 
rainfall patterns

 Design discrepancies

 Inaccurate assessments of 
hydrological properties for 
hydropower plants

 Obtain expert knowledge 
on establishing business 
parameters

to perform cross 

and assumptions

M M Sustainable 
growth 
and all 
stakeholders

2. Default Risk 

 Risk that the 
customer may revise 
the agreements and 
may not serve debt

 Renegotiation of Power 
Purchase Agreements 
before the termination 
dates

 Default of settlements by 
Ceylon Electricity Board 
(CEB)

 Delays in settlements by 
CEB

 Standardised Power 
Purchase Agreements 
(SPPAs) entered into with 
CEB for all power plants

 Carry out necessary and 
appropriate representative 

M M Financial 
Capital

3. Growth Risk 

 Hindrances to the 
growth of the Group

 The growth potential may 
dilute, due to lack of viable 
new projects

 Government’s plan 
not to execute SPPAs 
or limit the private 
developers’ participation 

conventional renewable 
energy projects

 Strengthen business leads 
generation and reference 
network

at Company and industry 
level

 Explore other countries for 
viable projects that matches 

VH VH Sustainable 
growth 
and all 
stakeholders

4. Price Risk

 Adverse movements 

 Downward revisions 

adversely impacting on 

existing projects

 Participate in representative 

through industry groups 
and associations

VH VH Financial 
Capital

VH   Very High     H   High     M   Medium     L
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MANAGING RISK

Risk Potential Exposure Mitigating Actions
Priority Strategic 

Impact
2018/2019 2017/2018

 Continual increase 
in the general price 
level

leading to high Operation 
and Maintenance cost of 
hydropower plants

 Capital expenditure 
overruns of new projects 
under development

and hedging strategies

mechanical equipment is 
expected to keep the spare 
parts requirement at low 
levels.

L L Financial 
Capital

6. Interest Rate Risk 

 Continual increase 
in the interest rates

 Upward pressure in 
overheads 

 Adverse impact on 

resultant high interest cost 
to the Group

and hedging strategies

 Maintain an appropriate 

 Negotiate for concessionary 
interest rates using Group 
strength 

H H Financial 
Capital

7. Exchange Rate Risk 

 Adverse movements 
in the exchange rate

 Capital expenditure 
overruns of new projects 
under development

 Changes in meeting 
feasibility of new projects

exchange rate exposure 

management tools such as 
hedging, forwards etc.

H H Financial 
Capital

8. Credit Risk  Impact on liquidity due to 

CEB

 Protection through legally 
enforceable agreements

L L Financial 
Capital

9. Regulatory and 
Compliance 

 Introduction of new 

business adversely

  Complexity in complying 
with regulatory 
requirements

 Unexpected tax burdens

 Abolishing of tax and 
import duty concessions 
and enforce infeasible 
environmental regulations

 Monitor the compliance 
with regulatory 
requirements

 Participate in representative 

that could have a negative 

industry

VH VH All 
stakeholders
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Risk Potential Exposure Mitigating Actions
Priority Strategic 

Impact
2018/2019 2017/2018

10. Risk arising 
due to Adverse 
Environmental 
Conditions

 Impact on returns from 
hydropower plants due 
to adverse environmental 
conditions such as 

 Adverse environmental 
conditions impact on 
the continuation of 
current projects under 
constructions

 Carry out preventive 
maintenance work to 

time risk in bad weather 
conditions

 Have a business continuity 
plan to reduce the plant 

H H Financial 
Capital

11. Project 
Development Risk 
and Crowding Out 
threat

 Delays in project 
development work 
due to deadlocks 
leading to loss of 
revenue

 Social and political issues 
that result in abandoning 
viable projects

support to encourage 
credible developers

 Government’s attempt to 
engage in the sector as a 
developer (crowding out 
threat)

 Strengthen project 
management expertise

 Build and maintain good 
rapport with the project 
stakeholders

at Company and industry 
level

VH VH All 
stakeholders

12. Funding Constraints

 Ability of the 
company to raise 
funds at the lowest 
rates

 Unavailability of funding 
lines at favourable terms

 Build and maintain good 
rapport with banks, 

funding agencies

 Maintenance of a desired 

 Search for foreign funding 
sources

 Selecting projects with high 
internal rate of returns for 
development to attract 

H H All 
stakeholders

VH   Very High     H   High     M   Medium     L
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MANAGING RISK

Risk Potential Exposure Mitigating Actions
Priority Strategic 

Impact
2018/2019 2017/2018

13. Employee health 
and safety

 The health and safety of 
the employees who work 
in the power plants and 
construction site 

 Establishing safety 
procedures for all 
operations that illustrate 
risks to employees and 
ensuring implementation 
and monitoring of the same

 Maintaining and monitoring 
employee health and safety 
statistics

H H Human 

Employees

14. Employee relations  Impact on business 
competitiveness due to 

retaining required talent

productivity and low 
employee engagement as a 
result of industrial disputes

H H Human 

Employees

15. Project Cost 
Overrun Risk

 Project cost exceeding 
budgets and estimates 
impacting the project 
return due to unexpected 
circumstances or 

 Detailed Planning

 Making accurate project 
cost estimates using expert 
knowledge

 Having tight budgetary 
controls on development 
cost and close monitoring 
of the costs by both project 

H H Financial 
Capital

16. Operational Risk

processes, natural perils 
and loss of sensitive 
information

 Conduct periodic internal 
audit reviews and report to 
the Audit Committee

 Maintain a business 
continuity plan to ensure 
disaster preparedness

L L All 
stakeholders
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Risk Potential Exposure Mitigating Actions
Priority Strategic 

Impact
2018/2019 2017/2018

17. Reputational Risk

arising from 
corporate behavior 
against the interest 
of the society

 Potential exposure of the 

litigation and unacceptable 
corporate behavior

to the Group not being 
perceived as a responsible 
corporate

 Operate within a code 
of business ethics that 
requires compliance with 
laws and regulations by all 
employees

 Projects are 
developed according 
to the Environmental 
Management System of the 
Group

 Environmental 
sustainability is within 
corporate DNA of Resus

 Engagement in various 
community related 
activities, including 
community development 
in surrounding areas of 
project sites

 Developing the social and 
physical infrastructure in 
rural villages where our 
projects are developed

M M All 
stakeholders

18. IT Risk  Potential threat of loss 
of data, interruptions to 
systems and outdated 
systems

 Having an internal IT 
consultant for facilitating 
the smooth functioning of 
IT systems

 Regular maintenance and 
upgrades to the systems 

 Establishment of IT policy 
and guidelines

L L

Management

VH   Very High     H   High     M   Medium     L



OUR 
RESULTS
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presenting its report combined with the Audited Consolidated 

The details set out herein provide the pertinent information 

by Recommended Best Practice.

Performance

generation projects remained the principal activity of Resus Energy 

The Group portfolio now consists of hydro power and solar power 
projects and the strategic intent of the Group’s business focuses 

project is on track with development work underway. The Group 

is in progress as at the reporting date. Standard Power Purchase 

With expected commissioning of these two hydro power projects 

from selling of electricity by its hydropower plants. The details of 

Name of Project Generation
Capacity

River Electricity Units 
Dispatched GWh

Giddawa MHPP Hulu Ganga

Upper Agra Oya MHPP
District

Agra Oya

Okanda MHPP
District

Magal Ganga

Gomale Oya MHPP Gomale Oya

Moragaha Oya MHPP Moragaha Oya

Ranwala Oya MHPP
District

Ranwala Oya

Total 10.6MW 32.31 27.52
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that neither the Company nor its subsidiaries have been engaged 
in any activity that contravenes laws and regulations.

The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group are given 

Group Company

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revenue

Net Finance cost

Provision for tax including deferred tax

162,845,889 116,165,674 (45,196,357) (4,410,335)

162,845,889 116,165,674 (45,196,357) (4,410,335)

Balance brought forward from the previous year

Transfer of fair value reserve to retained earnings

Transfer of reserves from amalgamation

Tax on subsidiary dividends

Amount available for appropriation

Interim dividends paid

Balance to be carried forward to the next year 100,114,069 557,720,159 32,400,024 169,394,624

Auditors’ Report
The Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements is given on page 

The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial 

the Accounting Policies adopted during the year.

Interest Register and Directors’ interests in Contracts Directors’ 
interest in contracts or proposed contracts are disclosed on 
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During the year, entries made in the 
Interest Register consisted of Directors’ 
Interest in Contracts, remuneration paid to 
the Directors and renewal of Directors’ and 

Register is available at the registered head 

Directors of the Company

including the names of the Directors who 

have been disclosed on the inner back 
cover of the Annual Report.

Review of Performance of the 
Board and Board Sub-Committees
The review of performance of Board and 

during the year by way of a discussion 
during the Board Meetings.

Board and Board Sub-Committee 
Meetings
The number of Board meetings, Audit 
Committee meetings, Remuneration 
Committee meetings and Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee meetings 
held during the year and the attendance of 
Directors at these meetings are given on 

The Board established a ‘Related Party 

Directors’ Remuneration
The Directors’ remuneration paid by the 
Company and the Group is disclosed in 

Directors’ Interest in Shares
The Directors’ shareholdings are disclosed 

Corporate Governance
The Board is committed to maintain high 
standards of Corporate Governance, the 
process by which the Company is directed 
and managed. The Corporate Governance 

Annual Report.

The Enterprise Risk Management Report 

Report, which includes information 
pertaining to material foreseeable risks of 
the Group and the mitigation actions.

The Directors accept the ultimate 
responsibility for the system of internal 
control of the Company and the Group. 
The systems are geared to provide 
reasonable assurance that the assets of 
the Group are safeguarded and that all 
transactions are conducted as relevant, 
properly authorised and duly recorded. 
Further details of the internal control 
system in operation are also contained 
in the Directors’ Statement on Internal 

Directors’ Responsibilities in relation to 

and the Audit Committee Report on page 

The tax liability of the Company and its 
subsidiaries has been computed according 
to the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act 

The applicable provisions under the 

Board of Investments (BOI) law have been 
taken into consideration for taxation of 
subsidiary companies.

The method of computation of income 
taxes of the Company and the Group 

Financial Statements.

Corporate Donations
The Group and the Company made Rs. 

year respectively.

The book carrying value of property, plant 
and equipment as at the reporting date 

respectively. Capital expenditure during 
the year for the Company and Group 

respectively.

Details of property, plant and equipment 

Statements.

The most recent revaluation of the 
Company’s subsidiaries’ freehold 

and the carrying value of freehold land 
was adjusted accordingly. The details 
of freehold revalued lands as per the 

the Financial Statements and the Directors 

current market values of freehold lands of 
the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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The Directors are of the view that the 

values and no indications of impairment 
have been noted as of the date of this 
Report.

The Stated Capital of the Company as 

shares. The stated capital increased by Rs. 

The distribution of shareholdings is 

Report. This gives information on the top 
twenty shareholders’ names, number of 
shares held and the percentage held by 
each shareholder with the Public holding 
percentage and the distribution schedule 
of the number of holders in each class of 
equity securities and the percentage of 
their total holding.

Each of Director’s including the Managing 
Director’s direct and indirect holdings in 
shares of the Company at the beginning 

No Employee Share Ownership Plans and 

year for the Company and the Group.

Share Information
Information relating to earnings, dividends, 
net assets and market value per share 

information on share trading.

Annual Report.

The Directors paid an interim cash 

dividend for shareholders’ approval at the 
AGM.

Environment Protection

and its subsidiaries have not engaged in 
any activities, which have caused detriment 
to the environment. The activities are 
carried out in accordance with the Group 
Environmental Management System to 
preserve the environment.

Statutory Payments

knowledge and belief that all statutory 
obligations due to the Government and to 
the Employees have been either duly paid 
or adequately provided for in the Financial 
Statements.

Practices on Related Party Transactions 

issued by Securities and Exchange 

Related Party Transactions have been 
complied with by the Company and the 

Events after the Reporting Period
Circumstances giving rise to disclosure 
in the Financial Statements since the 
Reporting Date have been disclosed 

No circumstances have arisen since 
the Reporting Date that would require 
adjustments in the Financial Statements.

Going Concern

the Company and its subsidiaries will 
have adequate resources to continue 
its operations without any disruption in 
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the 
Directors consider that it is appropriate 
to prepare Financial Statements on Going 
Concern basis.

Auditors
The Financial Statements of the 
Company and the Group for the year 
have been audited by Messrs Ernst & 
Young, Chartered Accountants, who are 

The Audit Fees payable and fees paid to 
them by the Company for other services 
rendered for the year under review are as 
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The Directors have recommended a 
resolution to be passed at the forthcoming 

appointment of Messrs Ernst & Young as 
Auditors and authorizing the Directors to 

that they do not have any relationships 
(other than that of Auditor) with, or 
interests in, the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries other than those disclosed 
above.

The Annual General Meeting of the 
Company will be held at the Auditorium of 

the Annual Report.

Board of Directors,

H A S Madanayake

Chairman

G A K Nanayakkara

Managing Director

Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) 
Limited

Secretaries

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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the Financial Statements. In addition, the Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business in an arm’s length basis with 
the entities where the Chairman or a Director of the Company is the Chairman or a Director of such entity as detailed below.  

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS WITH 
THE COMPANY  

 Amount Rs. 

Company Director Nature of Transaction  2018/19 

Gomale Oya Hydro Funds Received

Mr. H A S Madanayake Funds Transferred

Mr. U G Madanayake Share Issue

Mr. I S Somaratne Share Transfer

Funds Received

Mr. H A S Madanayake Funds Transferred

Mr. U G Madanayake Share Issue

Mr. I S Somaratne Share Transfer

Upper Huluganga Funds Received

Mr. H A S Madanayake Funds Transferred

Mr. U G Madanayake Share Issue

Mr. I S Somaratne Share Transfer

Funds Received

Mr. H A S Madanayake Funds Transferred

Mr. U G Madanayake        

Mr. I S Somaratne        

Reimbursement of Expenses

Mr. H A S Madanayake

Mr. U G Madanayake 

Mr. I S Somaratne 

Resus Eastern Solar Reimbursement of Expenses

Mr. H A S Madanayake

Mr. U G Madanayake 

Mr. I S Somaratne 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN 
RELATION TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following statement which should 
be read in conjunction with the Auditors’ 
Statement of their responsibilities, as set 
out in their report, is made with a view to 
distinguish the respective responsibilities 
of the Directors and the Auditors, in 
relation to the Financial Statements. 

that the Directors prepare the Financial 

of the Company and the Group as at the 

loss of the Company and the Group for 

shareholders. These Financial Statements 
comprise a Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, which presents a true and fair 

a Statement of Financial Position, which 
presents a true and fair view of the state 

complies with the requirements of the 

The Directors consider that in preparing 
the Financial Statements disclosed on 

used appropriate accounting policies, 
consistently applied and supported 
by reasonable and prudent judgment 
and estimates, and that all Accounting 

consider to be applicable have been 
followed. The Directors also ensure 

Accounting and Auditing Standards Act 

Colombo Stock Exchange have been 
followed and complied with. 

The Directors have the responsibility 
for ensuring that the Company keeps 
accounting records which disclose with 

position of the Company and which 
enable them to ensure that the Financial 
Statements comply with the provisions of 

The Directors are required to provide 
the Auditors with every opportunity to 
take whatever steps necessary to enable 
them to form their audit opinion. The 
responsibility of the Auditors in relation to 
the Financial Statements appears in the 
Report of the Independent Auditors on 

Chartered Accountants, the Independent 
Auditors of the Company has examined 
the Financial Statements and the related 
records and information. Their opinion on 

The Board of Directors accepts 
responsibility for the integrity and 
objectivity of the Financial Statements 
presented. The Directors have general 
responsibility for taking reasonable 
steps to safeguard the assets of the 
Company and in this regard to give proper 
consideration to the establishment of 
appropriate internal control systems, with 
a view to preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities. 

of their knowledge, all taxes, duties and 
levies payable by the Company and its 
subsidiaries and all contributions, levies 
and taxes payable on behalf of and in 
respect of the employees of the Company 
and its subsidiaries and all other known 
statutory dues as were due and payable by 

the Company and its subsidiaries as at the 
reporting date have been paid, or where 
relevant provided for in the Financial 
Statements. 

Company and its subsidiaries have 
adequate resources to continue in 
business for the foreseeable future, 
and have continued to adopt the Going 
Concern basis in preparing Financial 
Statements for the Company and the 
Group. 

By order of the Board, 

Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) 
Limited 

Secretaries 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RESUS 
ENERGY PLC

statements 

Opinion

the Company and its subsidiaries (“the 

and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity 

statements, including a summary of 

statements of the Company and the Group 

position of the Company and the Group 

Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance 

standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 

report. We are independent of the Group 

in accordance with the Code of Ethics 

responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.   

Key audit matters  

in our professional judgment, were of most 

statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context 

as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. For each matter 
below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that 
context.

described in the Auditor’s responsibilities 

section of our report, including in relation 
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit 
included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the 

audit procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, 
provide the basis for our audit opinion on 

Key audit matters common to both Group and the Company

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Annual impairment of Goodwill 

The Group is required to annually 
test Goodwill for impairment which 

This annual impairment test was 

In addition, management’s assessment 

which is judgemental and based on 

economic conditions.

We performed the following procedures, amongst 
others.

approved budget, business plans and other 
evidence of future intentions and compared the 
estimates with those achieved historically.

We have involved our specialized internal 
resources to assist us, in assessing the 
appropriateness of the models and 
reasonableness of the estimates used by the 
Group.

We also assessed the adequacy of the 

statements.
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Other information consists of the 
information included in the Annual Report, 

our auditor’s report thereon. Management 
is responsible for the other information.

does not cover other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the 

to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether other information is 

statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard.

management and those charged 
with governance  

Management is responsible for the 

give a true and fair view in accordance 

for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the 

are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  

management is responsible for assessing 
the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate 
the Group or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are 
responsible for overseeing the Company’s 

process.  

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 

statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to 

statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with 

and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of 

statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is 

a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an 

internal controls of the Company and 
the Group.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by 
management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of 
management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related 
to events or conditions that may cast 

to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to 

statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, 

statements, including the disclosures, 

represent the underlying transactions 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.  

information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express 

statements. We are responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance 
of the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged 
with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of 

internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with 
governance with a statement that we 
have complied with ethical requirements 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with 
those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of 

and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so 

would reasonably be expected to outweigh 

communication.

have obtained all the information and 
explanations that were required for the 
audit and, as far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting records 
have been kept by the Company.

The Institute of Chartered Accountant 

engagement partner responsible for 
signing this independent auditor’s report 

Colombo
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Group Company
As at 31st March 2019 2019

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries

7
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Equity
Stated capital
Other components of equity
Retained earnings
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Trade and other payables
Income tax liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Bank overdrafts

compliance with the requirements of the  

N K L Perera
Head of Finance

H A S Madanayake G A K Nanayakkara
Chairman Managing Director

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2019 2019
Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revenue
Cost of electricity generated

Administrative expenses

Finance income
Finance cost

Tax expense

Equity holders of the parent

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2019 2019
Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Equity holders of the parent

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31st March Attributable to Equity holders of the parent

Other components of equity
controlling

interest
Stated
capital

Revaluation
reserve

Fair value
reserve

Retained
earningsGroup Total Total equity

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Other comprehensive income

Transfer of NCI balance to retained earnings
Tax on dividends paid by subsidiaries

Other comprehensive income

Transfer of FV reserve to retained earnings

Other component of equity

Company
Stated capital Revaluation

reserve
Fair value

reserve 
Retained 
earnings

Total equity

RS. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

300,000,000 -
- -

Other comprehensive income - -
- -

- -
- -

300,000,000 -

- -
Other comprehensive income - -

- -

- -
379,506,038 -
379,506,038 -

Transfer of FV reserve to retained earnings - -
- 5,194,210

679,506,038 5,194,210 -

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2019 2019

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Depreciation

Finance cost

Gain on share repurchase

Finance income

Finance cost paid
Gratuity paid
Income tax paid

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2019 2019

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Finance income received

Investments in subsidiaries

Proceeds from interest bearing loans and borrowings

Repayment of preference shares

Tax on dividends paid by subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash balance from Acquisition
Cash balance from Amalgamation

Cash in hand and at bank
Bank overdrafts
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

1.1 Corporate Information

company listed on Colombo Stock Exchange incorporated 

Company are being traded on the Colombo Stock Exchange. 

Company and all its subsidiaries whose accounts have been 

own. The Company is the ultimate parent of the Group.

principal activities of the Group and the Company during 

All subsidiaries of the Company as at reporting date have 

The Company, Resus Energy PLC

the objective of investing in power generating companies 
and to carry on the business of a Venture Capital Company 
including investment in shares, stocks, options, funds, 
debentures, debenture stocks, bonds, obligations, or 
securities or acquiring any other interest whatsoever in any 
company, public authority, or business concern, investing 
in ordinary shares in a company engaged in any project 

investments of such terms and conditions as may be thought 

Company was engaged in investing in power generating 
companies and related venture capital activities during the 
year under review.

Group Entities

The Company 

Amalgamation which was carried out during the year. 

during the year under review and transmitted to feed the 
national grid.

The Company became a direct 

which was carried out during the year. Previously Giddawa 

electricity from hydro power during the year under review 
and transmitted to feed the national grid.
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The Company became 

Amalgamation which was carried out during the year. 

hydro power in Panvila, Digana. Upper Huluganga project is 
progressing with construction work as of the reporting date.

The Company 

Amalgamation which was carried out during the year. The 
Company was incorporated with the intention to build and 

The company is a 
dormant company as of the reporting date.

 The Company was incorporated 
with the intention to build and operate Solar power plants 

 –
ordinary shares of the entity. This is a special purpose entity 

District.

ordinary shares of the entity. This is a special purpose entity 

Deraniyagala and commenced its commercial operation in 

1.4 Date of Authorization for Issue

2.1  Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and 

loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement 

Accounting Standards, promulgated by the Institute of 

comply with the requirements of the Companies Act, No. 7 

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and 

2.1.3 Basis of Measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared 

Value through OCI which has been measured at fair value 

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, 
unless otherwise indicated.

Due to the transition methods chosen by the Group 
in applying these standards, comparative information 
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A) SLFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

determining whether, how much and when revenue 

Construction Contracts and related interpretations. Under 

control of the goods or services. Determining the timing 
of the transfer of control – at a point in time or over time 
requires judgements.

impact on Company’s Financial Statements.

and hedge accounting.

elected not to restate comparative information based on the 

information provided continues to be accounted for in 
accordance with the company’s previous accounting policy.

Investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive 

the Company has irrevocably elected to classify as such at or 

as a result of holding this investment will be recognized to 

categories. 

Assumptions

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 

requires management to make judgments, estimates and 

policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 

estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and 

uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting 

recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements is set 
out below.

2.2.1 Going Concern

regulatory and other factors and such matters required to be 
addressed the Directors have a reasonable expectation that 
the Company possesses adequate resources to continue in 
operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they 
continue to adopt the Going Concern basis in preparing the 

The Group annually measures the present value of the 

unit credit method. This involves making assumptions on 
discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Due to the 
long–term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject 

used and  the sensitivities thereon.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Group reviews the residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 
at each reporting date. Judgment of the management is 
exercised in the estimation of these values, rates, methods 
and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax 
losses (except the tax losses accumulated in the Company) 

management judgment is required to determine the amount 
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon 

with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or 
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which 
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in 
use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on 
available data from binding sales transactions on an arm’s 
length basis of similar assets or observable market prices 
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated 

Group entities.

The consolidated Financial Statements comprise the 

the Group as a single economic entity distinguishing the 
equity attributable to the parent (Controlling Interest) and 

interest.

3.1.2 Subsidiaries

Business combinations are accounted for using the 
acquisition method as at the acquisition date – i.e. when 
control is transferred to the Group. Control is achieved 
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns 
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability 

Group has:

I. Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it 
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the 
investee)

II. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee

amount of the investor’s returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or 
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant 
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power 
over an investee, including:

I. The contractual arrangement between the investor and 
other vote holders.

II. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

III. The investor’s voting rights and potential voting rights

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to 
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation 
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over 
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of 
the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of 
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are 

date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 
to control the subsidiary.
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income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the 

accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting 

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a 
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises 

controlling interest and other components of equity while 

investment retained is recognised at fair value.

3.1.3 Business Combination

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of 
the consideration transferred, measured at the acquisition 

interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, 

interest in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate 

included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the 

contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent 
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the 
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the 
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the 
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its 
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the 
acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition 
date. Contingent consideration which is deemed to be a 

presentations. If the contingent consideration is not within 

settlement is measured at fair value with changes in fair 

comprehensive income (OCI).

the Acquisition of Subsidiaries

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of 
the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the 

value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate 
consideration transferred, the gain (bargain purchase) is 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less 
any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business 
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each 
of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected 

unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed 
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of 
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when 
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. 
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based 
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the 

and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value 
may be impaired.
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Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the 
recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to 
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of 

an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating 
to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

loss and net assets that is not held by the Group and are 

and loss and within equity in the Consolidated Statement 
of Financial Position separately from parent shareholders’ 
equity.

acquisition date. The Group elects whether to measure the 

acquiree’s fair value or at the proportionate share of the 

3.1.6 Associates (equity accounted investees) and Joint 
Ventures

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby 
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement 
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint 
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an 
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties 
sharing control.

or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine 
control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture 
are accounted for using the equity method. However, the 
Company does not have any interest in associate and joint 
ventures during the year under review.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate 
and joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying 
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes 
in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint 
venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to 
the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment 
individually.

of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. 
Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of 
the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change 
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint 
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, 
when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. 
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions 
between the Group and the associate or joint venture are 
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or 
joint venture.

associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the 

before tax.

The Financial Statements of the associate and joint venture 
are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. 
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the 
accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group 
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an 
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint 
venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines 
whether there is objective evidence that the investment in 
the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such 
evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment 

associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then 

control over the joint venture, the Group measures and 
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any 
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control and the fair value of the retained investment and 

accounting policy in accounting for assets and liabilities 

 Assets and liabilities of the combining entities were 
transferred at their carrying amounts and accordingly no 

the transaction date.

from the date of the amalgamation.

3.2 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 

revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the 
payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable net of 
related taxes.

before revenue is recognised:

Revenue from electricity supplied is recognised upon delivery 

of electricity to Ceylon Electricity Board. Delivery of electrical 
energy shall be completed when electrical energy meets the 

Agreements (SPPA) which is complied at the metering point.

(b) Interest Income

through OCI, interest income or expense is recorded using 

discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts 

a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying 

Interest income earned by subsidiaries is included under 

interest income earned by the Company from its venture 
capital activities is shown under Revenue.

(c) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to 
receive the payment is established.

(d) Others

Other income is recognised on an accrual basis when it 

group.

3.3 Foreign Currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by 
the Company at the functional currency rates prevailing at 
the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot 
rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

with the exception of all monetary items that forms part of a 
net investment in a foreign operation. These are recognised 
in other comprehensive income until the disposal of the net 
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investment. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange 

other comprehensive income.

cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 

monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the 
fair value is determined.

items is recognised in line with the gain or loss of the item 

respectively).

(b) Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated 

are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

translation are recognised in other comprehensive income. 
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other 
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign 

The provision for income tax is based on the elements 

statements and computed in accordance with the 

amendments thereto.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and 
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the Commissioner General of 
Inland Revenue. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute 
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted on the reporting date in the country where the 

Group operates and generates taxable income. Current 
income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is 

loss.

Resus Energy PLC - Parent

any person, who has entered into a Standardized Power 

the Ceylon Electricity Board to provide electricity generated 

for the three years of assessment after the commencement 

assessment as may be determined by the BOI, in which 

commencement of commercial operations of the company, 
whichever is earlier.

After expiration of the aforesaid tax exemption period, the 

immediately succeeding the last date of the tax exemption 
period.

After expiration of the aforesaid two years concessionary tax 

any person, who has entered into a Standardized Power 

the Ceylon Electricity Board to provide electricity generated 

for the three years of assessment after the commencement 
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holidays under the BOI agreements. However, as per section 

has entered into a Standardized Power Purchase Agreement 

Board to provide electricity generated using renewable 

years of assessment after the commencement of Act. After 

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all 

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 

i) The initial recognition of goodwill: or

ii) The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 

and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that 

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except: where 
the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary 

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at 
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 

to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 

deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at 
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised in correlation to 
the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity.

against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.

Tax on dividends declared by the Company and its 
subsidiaries is recognized in equity.

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are 
held for use in the production of Hydro Power Electricity and 
for administrative purposes which is expected to be used 
during more than one period.

(a) Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost, net of 

losses, if any. Such cost includes the expenditure that is 

of replacing component parts of the Property, Plant and 

parts of Property, Plant and Equipment are required to be 
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replaced at intervals, the Group derecognises net book 
value of the replaced part, and recognises the new part with 

when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised 
in the carrying amount of the Plant and Equipment as a 

(b) Subsequent Cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it 

or loss as incurred.

(c) Depreciation

property and equipment less their estimated residual values 

assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term 
and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the 
Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. 

(d) Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 

when the item is derecognised.

When replacement costs are recognised in the carrying 
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, 
the remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised.

When items of Property, Plant and Equipment are 
subsequently revalued, the entire class of such assets is 
revalued. Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other 

comprehensive income and accumulated in equity in 
the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it 
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously 

on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation 
reserve.

Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is 
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset 
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of 
the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating 
to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained 
earnings.

3.6 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, 
or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is 

arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even 

Finance leases that transfer to the Group substantially all 

leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the 
lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at 

reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. 
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group 
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset 
is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of 
the asset and the lease term.
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Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating 

basis over the lease term.

3.7 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes 
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use 
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective 
assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period 
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other 
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds.

3.8 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 
location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs to sell.

Subsequent Measurement

another entity.

subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through 

characteristics and the Group’s business model for 
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables 

which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the 

the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured 

contracts with customers.

are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the 
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to 
as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

of assets within a time frame established by regulation or 
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement for purposes of subsequent 

categories:

 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

 Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of 
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

 Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI 
with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon 
recognition (equity instruments)
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both of the following conditions are met

 

 

of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently 

subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in 

impaired.

receivables and amounts due from related companies.

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through 
OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

 
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash 

 

of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest 
income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment 
losses or reversals are recognised in the income statement 

measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value 
changes are recognised in OCI. Upon recognition, the 
cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to 

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify 
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments 
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the 

in the income statement the right of payment has been 

asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity 
instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not 
subject to impairment assessment.

they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 

the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt 

through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may 

accounting mismatch.

changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised 
as other income in the income statement when the right of 
payment has been established.
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit 

to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original 

enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

each reporting date to determine whether there is objective 

impaired if, there was objective evidence as a result of one 
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition 

primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s 

 
expired

 Or

 
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 

either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 

and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of 
the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash 

arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of 
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred 
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that 
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured 

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee 
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Group could be required 
to repay.

trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 
recognition. 

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are 

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
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of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 

net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of 

to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 
recognised as a deduction from equity.

as certain classes of Property, Plant and Equipment at fair 

or where fair values are disclosed are summarised under 
the respective notes. Fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either:

 In the principal market for the asset or liability

Or

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a 
liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 

assuming that market participants act in their economic 

asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to 

and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The 
Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate 

available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair 

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as 

the fair value measurement as a whole:

 
markets for identical assets or liabilities

 

directly or indirectly observable

 

unobservable

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the 

reporting period.

is decided upon annually after discussion with and approval 
by the Group’s Board Audit Committee wherever necessary. 
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, 
independence and whether professional standards 
are maintained. The Board Audit Committee whenever 
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necessary after discussions with the Group’s external valuers 
decide which valuation techniques and inputs to use for 
each case.

At each reporting date the Management analyses the 
movements in the values of assets and liabilities which 

the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the 

valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation 
computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 
The Management in conjunction with the Group’s external 
valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of 
each asset and liability with relevant external sources to 
determine whether the change is reasonable. This includes a 
discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has 
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability 
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

details as to how they are measured are provided in Note 

term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 

and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as 

3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a 
provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance 
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate 
asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 

contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or 
constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

Employees are eligible to Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF) 
contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) contributions 
as per the respective statutes. These obligations come within 

of employees to Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ 
Trust Fund respectively. The contributions made are 

made.
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reporting date. The calculations performed annually by a 

(PUC). Any actuarial gains and losses arising are recognised 
immediately in other comprehensive income. The discount 
rate has been derived considering the yield of government 
bonds.

continued service.

The gratuity liability is not externally funded.

3.14 Business Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that 
engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s 
other components. All operating segments’ operating results 
are reviewed regularly by the Group’s Managing Director 
(MD) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to 
the segment and to assess its performance, and for which 

Segment results that are reported to the MD include items 
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can 
be allocated on a reasonable basis.

3.15 Comparative Information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied 
by the Group and are consistent with those used in the 

current year presentation.

Reporting Date

improvements to existing standards have been published, 

periods. None of those have been early adopted by the 
group.

SLFRS 16-Leases

requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all 

underlying asset has a low value even though lessor’s 
accounting remains similar to current practice. This 

the implementation of the above standard has not been 

from 1 January 2019
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4.1 Group

Civil
construction Plant and

at Furniture machinery at
hydropower and hydropower

Freehold land plants equipment plants

Additions
Disposals

Additions
Transfers from Acquisition
Transfers from WIP
Disposals

Charge for the year
Disposals

Charge for the year
Disposals

construction of property, plant and equipment.
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Computer Motor Construction
equipment vehicles Generators in Progress Total
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Name of the company Freehold land extent Revaluation amount (Rs.)

Giddawa, Digana, Teldeniya
Dikkellakanda, Maliboda, Deraniyagala
Magala, Deraniyagala

No. of Sq. ft. of
Name of the company buildings buildings

Giddawa, Digana, Teldeniya

Dikkellakanda, Maliboda, Deraniyagala
Magala, Deraniyagala
Digana, Teldeniya
Maliboda, Deraniyagala

Company

outstanding 

(Rs.)Freehold land
Civil 

structures

Hydropower 
plant and 

machinery Total

Gomale Oya Hydro Power 
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4.6 Impairment

4.7 Borrowing Costs

4.8

4.9 The useful lives of the assets of the Group are estimated as follows:

2019

Civil construction at hydropower plants

Plant and machinery at hydropower plants
Computer equipment
Motor vehicles
Generators
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4.10 Company

Civil
construction Plant and

at machinery at
hydropower hydropower Computer Motor

Freehold land plants plants equipment vehicles

Additions
Disposals

Additions
Transferred on Amalgamation
Disposals

Charge for the year
Disposals

Charge for the year
Transferred on Amalgamation
Disposals
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Furniture and
equipment Generators Total
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5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

5.1 Group

Balance Additions
as at 31st 

March 2019
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Goodwill

2019
Rs. Rs.

Goodwill

 Rs. 

Purchase consideration
NCI, based on their proportionate interest in the recognized amounts of net assets

Goodwill

5.3 The Company and its subsidiaries annually carry out impairment tests on all its intangible assets. The business acquisition to which 
the goodwill is attributable is valued based on the earnings growth method. Assumptions applied in such computations are reviewed 
each year.

Recoverable values for the above test was estimated based on value in use of the acquired assets on business combination in the 

Based on historical growth rate and business plan.

Discount rate
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Period covered was as per the Standard Power Purchase Agreement (SPPA) with Ceylon Electricity Board,

Subsidiary Remaining years

Gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the gross margins achieved in the year preceding 
the budgeted year

5.4

Rs.

5.5 Company

Rs.

Transferred on Amalgamation
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operations of amalgamated entities after the amalgamation. The business operations of amalgamated subsidiaries are similar and 
have identical net assets which were not changed after the amalgamation. 

6 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

             No. of shares          Cost of investment
As at 31st March 2019 2019 2019

Rs. Rs.

Direct subsidiaries

Sub subsidiaries*

*Sub subsidiaries were transferred to the company at the amalgamation

6.1 Acquisition during the year

Eliya District.
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Energy PLC

 Assets and liabilities of the combining entities were transferred at their carrying amounts and accordingly no adjustments have 

 

 

amalgamation.

 

Upper Agra
Giddawa Okanda Oya Hydro

Hydro Power Power Grid Power (Pvt)
Total

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities
Trade and other payables
Income tax liabilities
Bank overdrafts

Investment in Amalgamated entities
Goodwill recognized on initial acquisition
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As at 31 March 2019
Assets Equity

6.4 Issue of new shares

7 FINANCIAL INVESTMENT - FAIR VALUE THROUGH OCI

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

7.1 Investment in Panasian Power PLC
Balance at the beginning of the year

Cost of the investment sold
Balance at the end of the year

8 INVENTORIES

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Spare parts
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value
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9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Other receivables

Company Total Current
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the year
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Company
2019

Company name Relationship Rs. Rs.

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

9.3.1

9.3.2

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

10.1
Cash in hand and at bank

10.2
Bank overdrafts

11 STATED CAPITAL - GROUP/COMPANY

2019
No of Shares Rs. No of Shares Rs.

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year
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11.1

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share 
on a poll at a meeting of the Company.

12 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Group Company
2019 2019

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Preference shares

13 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

13.1 Movement
At the beginning of the year

Amounts transferred on Amalgamation

Borrowing cost capitalized
Interest payments
Capital repayments during the year
At the end of the year at amortised cost
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Principal Amount

Company Facility amount outstanding Repayments terms Interest rate

Transferred on 
Amalgamation from 
Giddawa Hydro Power 

Syndicated loan 
facility instalments commenced from 

Fixed rate

Sampath 

Transferred on 
Amalgamation from 
Okanda Power Grid (Pvt) 

Syndicated loan 
facility instalments commenced from 

Fixed rate

Sampath 

Transferred on 
Amalgamation from Upper 
Agra Oya Hydro Power 

Syndicated loan 
facility instalments commenced from 

Fixed rate

Sampath 

Gomale Oya Hydro Power 
loan facility

Sampath 
instalments commenced from based plus 

margin

loan facility
Sampath 

instalments commenced from based plus 
margin

Upper Hulu Ganga 
loan facility

Hatton 
National instalments commencing from based plus 

margin

loan facility
Seylan Bank 

instalments commencing from based plus 
margin

Seylan Bank 
instalments commenced from 

Fixed rate

Project Financing Sampath 
instalments commencing from based plus 

margin

Sampath 
instalments.

Fixed rate

Bridging facility Commercial Bullet repayment at maturity as Fixed rate

Credit Facility Nation Trust 
instalments commencing from based plus 

margin

Facility
Sampath 

based plus 
margin
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a) Primary concurrent mortgage over immovable project assets, movable project assets including project documents (licenses, 
approvals, agreements, contracts, bonds), book debts, insurance proceeds and receivables.

a.) Primary mortgage over immovable and movable projects assets including project appovals, book debts and insurance proceeds.

b) Primary mortgage bond over entirety of shares issued supported by a power of attorney.

14 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - GRATUITY

Group Company
2019 2018

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Transferred on Amalgamation
At the end of the year

14.1
Current service cost

14.2

2019

Method of Actuarial Valuation: Projected unit Projected unit
credit method credit method

Expected return on plan asset
Discount rate
Salary increment Rate

Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate during employment
Retirement age
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the key assumptions employed with all other 

2019
Group

Discount rate
Salary increment rate

Company
Discount rate
Salary increment rate

of the sensitivity analysis.

15 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax asset Deferred tax liability
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

15.1 Movement
Balance at beginning of the year

Balance at end of the year

position loss
Other comprehensive 

income
2019 2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes

Unutilised tax losses
Deferred tax impact from change in income tax rates
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15.3

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed by the Company at each reporting date with the view of recognising to the extent 

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2019 2019
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade and other payables

Dividends payable*
Sundry creditors including accrued expenses

*Dividend payable balance consist of dividend cheques issued but yet unpresented by the shareholders.

Company

Company name  Relationship 2019
 Rs.  Rs. 

 Subsidiary 
 Subsidiary 
 Subsidiary 
 Subsidiary 

16.1.1 

17 REVENUE

Group Company

2019 2019
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Supply of electricity
Dividend income 
Interest income from investments
Gain on share repurchase
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18 OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(EXPENSE)

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

For the year ended 31 March 2019
Revenue

Project is under construction
Project is under construction

20 IMPAIRMENT CHARGE

21 NET FINANCE COST

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

21.1 Finance cost
Interest expense on overdrafts
Term loan interest
Preference share dividends
Bank guarantee charges

21.2 Finance income
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22 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Stated after charging all expenses including the following

Donations
Auditors’ remuneration
Auditors’ fees

23 TAX EXPENSE

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
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Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Other sources of income
Consolidated adjustments
Aggregate allowable expenses
Aggregate disallowed items

Other sources of income
Assessable Income

Total Assessable Income

Current income tax expense

Group Company
2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Tax losses brought forward
Prior year adjustment
Tax losses generated during the year
Tax losses utilised during the year

Tax losses carried forward

23.3 The Company has not recognised deferred tax asset on its carried forward unused tax losses due to the ongoing tax dispute with the 
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24. EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE

Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Group Company
2019 2019

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

24.2
earnings per share is same as Basic earnings per share.

25. DIVIDENDS PAID

2019
Gross Dividend Net Gross Dividend Net

dividend tax dividend dividend  tax dividend
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interim dividend paid
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26 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY MEASUREMENT BASIS

Group as at 31st March 2019

Financial 
instruments 
at fair value 

or loss

Financial 
instruments 
at amortized 

Cost

Financial 
instruments 
at fair value 
through OCI

Total carrying 
amount Fair value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts

Group as at 31st March 2018

Financial 
instruments  
at fair value 

or loss

Financial 
instruments 
at amortized 

Cost

Financial 
instruments 
at fair value 
through OCI

Total carrying 
amount Fair value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables

Bank overdrafts
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Company as at 31st March 2019

Financial 
instruments 
at fair value 

or loss

Financial 
instruments 
at amortized 

Cost

Financial 
instruments 
at fair value 
through OCI

Total carrying 
amount Fair value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts

Company as at 31st March 2018

Financial 
instruments 
at fair value 

or loss

Financial 
instruments 
at amortized 

Cost

Financial 
instruments 
at fair value 
through OCI

Total carrying 
amount Fair value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts
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current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

term maturities of these instruments.

available for debts on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

techniques.

 quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

directly or indirectly.

market data.

Group
31st March 2019

Company
31st March 2019

Financial liabilities are not measured at fair value.
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27 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

statements.

28 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Group

Capital expenditure 
commitment as at

Capital expenditure 
budget

Incurred as at 
reporting date

31st March 
2019

Rs millions Rs millions Rs millions Rs millions

Construction of Upper Huluganga mini hydropower plant

Company

28.2 Lease commitments

conditions. There are no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering into this lease. 

Future minimum rentals payable under operating leases are as follows:

2019
Rs.  Rs. 

Within One Year
Between One and Five Years
After Five Years
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2019
Rs. Rs.

Operating lease expense under Administrative expenses

There are no contingent rent provisions in the lease agreement nor any material provisions that have impact on dividends and 
borrowings of the Company.

28.3 Contingencies

The Department of Inland Revenue have raised income tax assessments by disputing the venture capital status of Resus Energy 

Revenue Act.

28.4 Litigations

statements.

29 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or indirectly. Accordingly, 

the ultimate parent of the subsidiaries, the Board of Directors of the Company has the authority and responsibility for planning or 

Group/Company 2019
Rs. Rs.
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The Executive Directors are entitled to a structured incentive scheme which is linked to performance. The Company contributes 

 

e. Transactions with group entities

or their close family members were involved.
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29.2 Transactions with subsidiary companies

 

Company
Nature of transaction Terms and conditions 2019

Rs. Rs.

Settlement of related party 
current accounts

Recurrent

As per Agreement Recurrent
Investment in subsidiaries As per Agreement
Share repurchases Group capital restructuring
Share transfer Group capital restructuring

transactions

Name of the 
related company Relationship Nature of the transaction

Aggregate value of related 
party transactions entered 
into during the year (Rs.)

Aggregate value 
of related party 
transactions as % 
of Net revenue

Terms and 
conditions of 
the related party 
transaction

Subsidiary Reimbursement of 
expenses,fund received 
and transferred

Settlement on 
demand

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that arrive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s senior management is supported by the 

risk appetite. It is the Group’s policy that all derivative activities for risk management purposes are required to be approved by Board 
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The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

1. Market risk

market prices. Market risk of the Group primarily comprise 
of three types of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk, 
and other price risk, such as equity price risk. The Group’s 

The overall risk management programme focuses on 

performance, while optimising the returns to shareholders.

of the Group under risk management policies approved by 

the Board which set out the principles and procedures with 
respect to risk tolerance, delegated authority levels, internal 
controls, and management of foreign currency, interest rate 
and counterparty credit exposures and the reporting of 
exposures.

1.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 

changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market 

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a 

borrowings.

Group
As at 31st March 2019

Rs. % Rs. %

Company
As at 31st March 2019

Rs. % Rs. %
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cost.

2019
Group Company Group Company

change in basis points: Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Changes in deposit interest rate will have following sensitivity on interest income from investing excess cash.

2019 
 Group  Company  Group  Company 

change in basis points:  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

1.2 Equity price risk

The Company’s listed equity securities are susceptible to 
market price risk arising from uncertainties about future 
market values of the securities. The Company’s Board 
of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment 
decisions.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future 

of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure 
to foreign exchange rate changes is minimised by positive 

management techniques. The Group’s exposure to foreign 
exchange risk derives from electromechanical equipment 
imports to its hydropower projects and solar projects. 

estimatable due to unknown prices of future equipment 
orders as at the reporting date. Therefore, a sensitivity 
analysis is not shown as the Group is not aware of future 
equipment prices as at the reporting date.

2. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet 

to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for 

deposits with banks, and Receivable from subsidiaries. The 
credit risk arising on trade receivables primarily relates to 

customer of the Group.
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Group Company
As at 31st March 2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from related parties
Income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

2.1 Cash deposit instruments

exposures are reviewed by the Board of Directors on an annual basis, and updated throughout the year. The limits are set to 

Group Company
As at 31st March 2019 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group within Group’s 
established policy, procedures and control relating to 
customer credit risk management. Outstanding receivables 
from Ceylon Electricity Board are regularly monitored.

homogenous groups and assessed for impairment 
collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred 
historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 

Group does not hold collateral as security.

3. Liquidity risk

This is the risk that the Group will encounter in meeting 

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between 

Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect to 

existing lenders.

undiscounted payments.
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As at 31st March 2019 - Group On demand months months
 

years
 

years Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade and other payables
Income tax liabilities
Bank overdrafts

As at 31st March 2018 - Group On demand months months
 

years
 

years Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade and other payables
Income tax liabilities
Bank overdrafts

As at 31st March 2019 - Company On demand months months
 

years
 

 years Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade and other payables
Bank Overdrafts

As at 31st March 2018 - Company On demand months months
 

years
 

 years Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade and other payable
Bank overdrafts
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Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital 
ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new 

to the equity holders of the Group whilst cautiously managing the level of distress on debt.

A summary of Group’s capital structure is depicted below.

As at 31st March 2019
Rs. Rs.

Equity

Gearing ratio
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Restated
2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

A) Summary of operations
Revenue

Share of results of equity accounted 

Tax expenses

Stated capital
Other components of equity
Retained Earnings
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Current liabilities

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
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Restated
2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in associate
Investments in joint venture

Financial investments
Current assets

C) Key Indicators

(Rs)
From continuing operations (Rs)
From discontinued operations (Rs)

(%)
Net assets per share (Rs)
Dividend per share (Rs)
Dividend payout (%)
Dividend cover (Times)
Interest cover (Times)
Current ratio (Times)
Gearing (%)
Return on equity (%)
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As at 31st March 2019
Name No. of Shares % No. of Shares

Employees Trust Fund 

Tangerine Tours
 7 Miss. Durga Sithampalam

Harnam Holdings SDN BHD

Mr. Dulshan Thivanka Beruwalage

Mr. Mahabaduge Prasad Fernando Jayasuriya
Mr. Dinesh Prakash Navaratnam

Mr. G.A.H.Nanayakkara
Mrs. P.D.A.S.Beruwalage

Shares held by the balance shareholders
75,508,262  100.00 

Shareholdings Resident Non Resident Total

No. of No. of Percentage No. of No. of Percentage No. of No. of Percentage

Shareholders Shares (%) Shareholders Shares (%) Shareholders Shares (%)

7

2,544 75,049,817 99.39 17 458,445 0.60 2,561 75,508,262 100.00

INVESTOR INFORMATION
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Categories of Shareholders No of No of Shares
Shareholders

Individual
Institutional

2,561 75,508,262

As at 31st March 2019
No. of Shares No. of Shares

62,724,087 44,993,325

C D Coomasaru (Alternate Director to U G Madanayake)
146,259 113,000

C D Coomasaru (Alternate Director to U G Madanayake)
8,788 6,797
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As at 31st March 2019
No. of Shares No. of Shares

Directors’ direct and indirect Shareholding
26,206,336 13,277,141

34.71% 22.74%

Share Trading Information

2019

Market Price
Highest (Rs.)

As at Year ended (Rs.)
No. of Trades
No. of Shares Traded
Value of Shares Traded (Rs.)
Market Capitalisation (Rs.)
Price Earnings Ratio (Times)

Total Number of shareholders representing the public holding
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Disclosure Page Number

GRI 102: General Disclosures

Name of the organization Inner Back Cover

Activities, brands, products, and services

Inner Back Cover

Ownership and legal form

Markets served

Scale of the organization

Information on employees and other workers

Supply chain

Precautionary Principle or approach

External initiatives

Membership of associations Inner Back Cover

Strategy

Ethics and Integrity

Values, principles, standards, and norms of behavior 

Governance

Governance structure 77

Composition of the highest governance body and its committees 

Chair of the highest governance body 

Highest governance body’s role in sustainability reporting

Process for determining remuneration

Stakeholder Engagement

Collective bargaining agreements

Identifying and selecting stakeholders 

Approach to stakeholder engagement 

Reporting Practice

Restatements of information

Changes in reporting

GLOBAL REPORTING INITIATIVE (GRI)  
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Disclosure Page Number

Reporting period

Date of most recent report

Reporting cycle

Contact point for questions regarding the report

Claims of reporting in accordance with the GRI Standards

GRI content index 

TOPIC SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES

GRI 201: Economic Performance

Management Approach

Direct economic value generated and distributed

Financial implications and other risks and opportunities due to climate change

Financial assistance received from government

GRI 203: Indirect Economic Impacts

Management Approach

Infrastructure investments and services supported

GRI 204: Procurement Practices

Management Approach

Proportion of spending on local suppliers

GRI 205: Anti-corruption

Management Approach

GRI 301: Materials

Management Approach

Materials used by weight or volume

GRI 302: Energy

Management Approach

Energy consumption within the organization 

GRI 303: Water

Management Approach

Water withdrawal by source

Water recycled and reused 

GRI 304: Biodiversity

Management Approach

Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, protected areas and areas of high 
biodiversity value outside protected areas

GLOBAL REPORTING INITIATIVE (GRI)  
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Disclosure Page Number

Habitats protected or restored 

operations

GRI 305: Emissions

Management Approach

Reduction of GHG emissions

Management Approach

Water discharge by quality and destination

Waste by type and disposal method

GRI 307: Environmental Compliance

Management Approach

GRI 308: Supplier Environmental Assessment

Management Approach

New suppliers that were screened using environmental criteria

Negative environmental impacts in the supply chain and actions taken 

GRI 401: Employment

Management Approach

New employee hires and employee turnover

Parental leave 

GRI 403: Occupational Health and Safety

Management Approach

Types of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, and absenteeism, and number of 

GRI 404: Training and Education

Management Approach

Average hours of training per year per employee

Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition assistance programs 

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews

GRI 405: Diversity and Equal Opportunity

Diversity of governance bodies and employees

GRI 406: Non-discrimination
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Disclosure Page Number

Management Approach

Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken

GRI 407: Freedom of Association and Collective Bargaining

Management Approach

Operations and suppliers in which the right to freedom of association and collective bargaining may be 
at risk 

GRI 408: Child Labour

Management Approach

GRI 409: Forced or Compulsory Labor

Management Approach

GRI 413: Local Communities

Management Approach

Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, and development programs

GRI 414: Supplier Social Assessment

New suppliers that were screened using social criteria

Negative social impacts in the supply chain and actions taken 

GRI 416: Customer Health and Safety

Management Approach

GRI 418: Customer Privacy

Substantiated complaints concerning breaches of customer privacy and losses of customer data

GRI 419: Socioeconomic Compliance

GLOBAL REPORTING INITIATIVE (GRI)  
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NOTES
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NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Sixteenth Annual General 

A G E N D A

Statements of Accounts of the Company and the Group for the 

Auditors thereon. 

Company. 

the Company. 

Company. 

Company:

Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorize 
the Directors to determine their remuneration. 

7. To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations 
to Charity.

By order of the Board of

Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) Ltd

Secretaries

Note:

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and 
vote in his/her place.

A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

A Form of Proxy accompanies this Notice

No. 250/1, Torrington Avenue, Colombo 7, not less than forty-eight hours before 
 the meeting.



FORM OF PROXY

of ……………………………………………………………..........................................................……………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………...................................of …………………………………………….............................................................……………………………………………………………………..

Mr. H A S Madanayake or failing him

Mr. U G Madanayake or failing him

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC or failing him
Mr. I S Somaratne or failing him

For Against

To receive and consider Reports of the Directors, the Statements of Accounts of the Company and the 

 
Articles of Association of the Company. 

Articles of Association of the Company. 

 
Articles of Association of the Company. 

 

the Directors to determine their remuneration.

7. To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations to Charity.

………….......……………………………… …………………………………………

Note: 



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION

Articles of Association.

also accompany the completed Form of Proxy.



CORPORATE INFORMATION
102-1, 3, 5

Name of the Company
Resus Energy PLC

Legal Form
Quoted Public Company with limited 
liability, the ordinary shares of the 
Company were listed on the Colombo 
Stock Exchange on 8th October 2009

Date of Incorporation
11 June 2003

Date of Re-Registration under the 
Companies Act No 7 of 2007
11 September 2007  

Company Registration Number
PV 415 PB PQ

Accounting Year End
31 March  

  
No. 250/1,  
Torrington Avenue, Colombo 7,  
Sri Lanka.  
Telephone: +94-11-7731731  
Facsimile: +94-11-7731555  
  

)  
114340405  
  
Directors  
Mr. H A S Madanayake
Non-Executive Chairman   

Mr. G A K Nanayakkara
Managing Director  

Mr. U G Madanayake
Non-Executive Director   

Mr. I S Somaratne
Non-Executive Director  

Professor K A M K Ranasinghe
Independent Non-Executive Director  

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC
Independent Non-Executive Director  

Mr. C D Coomasaru
Alternate Director
(appointed w.e.f. 1st November 2016)  

Mr. C V Kulatilaka
Non-Executive Director
(resigned w.e.f. 7th December 2018)  
  
Audit Committee  

Professor K A M K Ranasinghe - Chairman  
Mr. U P Egalahewa PC   
Mr. I S Somaratne   
  
Remuneration Committee  

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC - Chairman  
Professor K A M K Ranasinghe   
Mr. H A S Madanayake   
  
Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee  

Mr. U P Egalahewa PC - Chairman  
Professor K A M K Ranasinghe   
Mr. G A K Nanayakkara   
Mr. I S Somaratne   
  
Company Secretaries  
Nexia Corporate Consultants (Pvt) Limited  
No. 181, Nawala Road, Narahenpita, 
Colombo 5, Sri Lanka.  
Tel : +94-11-2368154  
Fax : +94-11-2368621  

  
Company Registrars  
S S P Corporate Services (Pvt) Limited  
No. 101, Inner Flower Road, Colombo 3, 
Sri Lanka.  
Tel : +94-11-2573894  

Auditors  
Ernst & Young  
Chartered Accountants  
No. 201, De Saram Place, Colombo 10,
Sri Lanka.  
  
Bankers  
Sampath Bank PLC  
National Development Bank PLC  
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  
Hatton National Bank PLC  
Seylan Bank PLC  
Nations Trust Bank PLC  
  
Memberships of Associates  
Small Hydro Power Developers’ 
Association  
  
Investor Relations  
RESUS Energy PLC  
No. 250/1,  
Torrington Avenue,  
Colombo 7,  
Sri Lanka.  
Telephone: +94-11-7731731  
Facsimile: +94-11-7731555  



www.resusenergy.lk
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